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PART |
Iltem 1. Busines:

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (“WWJHs an integrated media and entertainment compWfe/have been involved in the sports
entertainment business for more than 25 yearshawe developed World Wrestling Entertainment inte of the most popular brands in glo
entertainment today. We develop unique and creatiméent centered around our talent and presentaadr dive and televised events. At the
heart of our success are the athletic and enter&itskills and appeal of our WWE Superstars amatonsistently innovative and multi-
faceted storylines across our three brands, RawcBbown and ECW. Anchored by these brands, weldeeta leverage our content and
talent across virtually all media outlets. Our lased televised events, consumer products, andaigiedia outlets provide significant cross-
promotion and marketing opportunities that reinéootir brands while effectively reaching our fans.

In June 2006, the Board of Directors tdd¢o change WWE's fiscal year to a calendar Hasgsnning with calendar 2007. This change
is intended to simplify communication with sharetesk and will enable the reporting of our financedults in a timeframe consistent with the
majority of our media and entertainment peers. foube change to a calendar year end, we havklissiad an eight month transition period
from May 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006. Tiselts from this time period are referred to thromgtthis report as “2006 transition
period”, “transition 2006”, “T 2006”, or the “traition period”. Except where noted, prior year leshave not been restated to reflect the
comparable eight month periods.

In Fiscal 2006, we expanded the numbeuofreportable segments to four in order to be#iect the manner in which management
analyzes the performance of our Company, and teatethe importance of our digital media businessebsthe production of feature films. \
also reclassified certain other operations amoagéeportable segments. All prior year informati@s been adjusted to reflect the current
presentation.

Our operations are centered around the following far business segments

» Live and Televised Entertainmel, which consists of live events, the sale of mendise at live events, television, |-per-view,
and video on demand programmi

« Consumer Product, which consists of the sale of home video produogazines and consumer products branded with our
intellectual property, including video games, tdyspks and other products through third party kess

» Digital Media, which consists of advertising sales on our websgiale of merchandise on our website through ourB%Wop
internet storefront and the sale of various broadtmnd mobile conter

*  WWE Films, which produces feature films and other film potge

In this Transition Report on Form 10-KYWE” refers to World Wrestling Entertainment, I@nd its subsidiaries, unless the context
otherwise requires. References to “we,” “us,” “oarid the “Company” refer to WWE and its subsid&r@orld Wrestling Entertainment and
the stylized and highly distinctive World Wrestliggtertainment scratch logo are two of our tradémmarhis Transition Report on Form 10-K
also contains other WWE trademarks and trade nase®ll as those of other companies. All trademarikdstrade names appearing in this
report are the property of their respective holders

Live and Televised Entertainment
(represents 70%, 73%, 82% and 82% of our net reveres in T 2006, fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fis@d04, respectively)
Live Events

Two of our brands, Raw and SmackDown, tadependently, each typically producing threéoorr events per week, affording us
flexibility in scheduling that allows us to play merous domestic and international markets. Intaddiour third brand, Extreme
Championship Wrestling (“ECW?"), performed 38 liveeaits in the transition period.

In transition 2006 we held 212 live eetitroughout North America, entertaining over orilion fans at an average ticket price of
approximately $36.00. We hold many of our live egeat major arenas across the country. In additiggroviding the content for our televisi
and pay-per-view programming, these events provgeith a real-time assessment of the popularitgunfstorylines and characters.
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In the 2006 transition period, we heldi8é events internationally reaching more than,282 fans at an average ticket price of
approximately $69.00. These events were spreadseveral successful international tours includingDX Reuniortour in Mexico, our
Survivor Seriesour in England and Ireland and damackDown Livéour in Spain and Portugal.

Live events net revenues were $52.3 omJl575.0 million, $78.7 million and $69.7 milliorgpresenting 20%, 19%, 22% and 19% of
total net revenues in T 2006, fiscal 2006, fisc#2 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

Venue Merchandise

Our venue merchandise business condiste sale at our live events of various WWE-brahgeoducts, such as T-shirts, caps and other
novelty items, all of which feature our Superstamg/or our logo. Nearly all of these products asighed by our in-house creative staff and
manufactured by third parties.

Venue merchandise net revenues were $allitin, $14.7 million, $12.8 million and $12.7 hidn, representing 5%, 4%, 3% and 3% of
total net revenues in transition 2006, fiscal 2d@&al 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

Television Programming

Relying on our in-house production capds at our production facility, we produce faetevision shows, consisting of 6 hours of
original programming each week. Our domestic cablké broadcast programs consist of “Monday Night R&EBCW”, “Friday Night
SmackDown” and “A.M. Raw.” We generate revenuerfrour programming through television rights feed by the sale of cable advertising
in Canada. We believe the popularity of our tedmn programming drives the success of our othsinesses, translating into increased live
event attendance, pay-per-view buys and merchasdlss.

Under our agreement with NBC Universaijah currently includes “Monday Night Raw” and tveekend program “A.M. Raw”, we
receive a rights fee totaling approximately $0.8iari per week. Monday Night Raw is a two-houmpetime program that is broadcast live on
USA Network and is consistently one of the mostolatl regularly scheduled programs on cable teavighs part of this agreement, Raw ¢
airs in replays on Telemundo and mun2. The redatipp with NBC Universal expanded with the annoumeet in May 2006 of the re-launch
of ECW: Extreme Championship Wrestling new program that began airing on the SCI FInéeh After an initial trial run, we secured a
distribution agreement to broadcast ECW on the B@hannel through December 2007.

The two-hour “Friday Night SmackDown”saisn the CW Network in primetime on Fridays anddasistently one of the highest rated
programs on CW and a top rated show among mald¥ Ehd males 18-34 on Friday nights. For this mgning, we receive a rights fee of
approximately $0.3 million per week.

Internationally, our programming is distited in more than 110 countries and 18 diffefanguages. We continue to expand our
distribution and have secured new television distion agreements on terrestrial, cable and s&t@latforms throughout the Middle East,
Africa, Asia, and South America. We believe olevesion distribution is key to our internationalcgess and use our programming to support
tours and related retail sales.

Television rights fee net revenues wé&@.% million, $81.5 million, $78.0 million and $A1million representing 22%, 20%, 21% and
19% of total net revenues in T 2006, fiscal 20¢&;dl 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

Advertising

We no longer sell advertising during puwgramming in the United States; however we comitito provide sponsorships domestically to
meet the needs of our advertisers. Through thasessrships, we offer advertisers a full rangewfpromotional vehicles, including internet
and print advertising, arena signage, on-air ancemnents and pay-per-view spronsorship. We contimsell advertising in our programs in
Canada.

Advertising net revenues were $4.5 milji$22.6 million, $43.7 million and $59.5 millioepresenting 2%, 6%, 12% and 16% of total
net revenues in T 2006, fiscal 2006, fiscal 2008 fistal 2004, respectively.

Pay-Per-View Programming

We have been pioneers in both the praoluend promotion of pay-per-view events sincefast pay-per-view eventVrestleMania |,
in 1985. At each pay-per-view event, our storylipéler culminate or change direction. We interigivearket and promote the storylines that
are associated with upcoming pay-per-view eventsuthh our television shows, internet sites and miaga Some of our international partners
include SKY in the UK, Premiere in Germany, SKY feet TV! in Japan, SKY ltalia in Italy and Main BEwvtein Australia.
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We produced 11 domestic pay-piew programs in the 2006 transition period as carag to 16 programs in fiscal 2006. There wer
pay-per-view events that occurred in both the 208sition period and fiscal 2006. These ten evameraged approximately 300,000 buys in
the 2006 transition period at a suggested dome=ttd price of $39.95 as compared to 325,000 fatyssuggested domestic retail price of
$34.95 in fiscal 2006. Based on the schedule pkwants, our most popular and successful annwitgWrestleMania did not occur in the
2006 transition period. Consistent with industrggiices, we share the revenues with cable systathsaellite providers such as DirecTV, i
pay service fees to INDEMAND and TVN.

Pay-per-view net revenues were $53.4ionill$94.8 million, $85.5 million and $95.3 milliprepresenting 20%, 24%, 23%, and 25% of
total net revenues in T 2006, fiscal 2006, fisc#%2 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

WWE 24/7

WWE 24/7 On Demarid a Subscription Video On Demand (SVOD) servia thakes available to subscribers approximatellgolgs
of content each month, exploiting both acquireddifp and original content. This content includas\ision programming, pay-per-view
events, special programming and home video/DVD fanogning.

WWE 24/7 On Demarid carried on Comcast, the largest cable operattitd United States, makiWyWE 24/7 On Demaralailable to
more than 10 million VOD-enabled homes, as welLaz Communications, Insight Communications and manre VOD-enabled independent
cable operators in the United States. Internalipriiie product is also being distributed throlggers Cable in Canada, Plala Networks, a
unit of NTT, in Japan and SKY ltalia in Italy. danuary 2007 we announced tW&tVE 24/7 On Demandlill also be carried on Cablevision,
with more than 2 million VOD-enabled homes. Thenber of average monthly subscribers in North Aneevias approximately 35,000.
Consistent with industry practices, we generallgretthe revenues with domestic cable systems.

WWE 24/7 net revenues were $2.0 milliortransition 2006, $1.1 million in fiscal 2006 aleds than $0.1 million in fiscal 2005, the
initial year of operation.

Consumer Products
(represents 22%, 22%, 15% and 15% of our net reveres in T 2006, fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fis@d04, respectively)
Licensing

We have established a worldwide licengirggram using our World Wrestling Entertainmentksaand logos, copyrighted works and
characters on a large variety of retail productsiuding toys, video games, apparel and books.€dtly, we maintain licenses with more than
100 licensees worldwide that provide products &de it major retailers. In all of our licensingegments, we retain creative approval over the
design, packaging, advertising and promotional nedtassociated with these products to maintairdisgnctive style and quality of our
intellectual property and brand.

Video games represent an important compbof our licensing program, generating substhrgigenues through our license with
THQ/Jakks Pacific, LLC (“THQ/Jakks"). Our video gamcover the current console platform and willéetdred in the new generation of
video game platforms. As a result of informatiorcaovered in connection with our litigation with $iker & Associates, in 2004 we filed an
action in the U.S. District Court for the South@nistrict of New York against, among others, Jakksiftc, Inc. (“Jakks”), THQ Inc. (“THQ")
and THQ/Jakks, alleging, among other things, violet of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Ozgitn Act (RICO). In October 2006,
we filed a complaint in the Superior Court of that8 of Connecticut against THQ and THQ/Jakksragisiut of the improper sublicense of
rights to certain WWE-branded videogames in violaif the applicable videogame license agreemdrd.cbmplaint alleges claims for,
among other things, breach of contract, unjustcmient, violation of the Connecticut Unfair Tradadices Act and a declaration that we are
entitled to terminate the videogame license agre¢migh THQ/Jakks. During this litigation we comtie to fulfill our obligations under the
current license and expect Jakks and THQ to devide Additional information regarding this litiian is available in Note 12 to Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Under our publishing licensing agreemeitlh Simon & Schuster, we have a book-publishingeagent. This agreement allows us the
ability to publish original content in a variety génres, including fiction, histories, how-to, andobiographies. During transition 2006, we
published five new books, includifithe Marine,an adaptation of the WWE Films production. We gigblishedControversy Creates Cash,
Eric Bischoff's autobiography, which became thertieth WWE book to appear on the New York TimestEssdler List.
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Music is an integral part of the entemtaént experience surrounding WWE's live eventgvigion programs, and pay-per-views. We
compose and record most of our music, includingSwperstar entrance themes, in our recording studiaddition to our own composed
music, we license popular performance artists waercontributed music for WWE programs.

Licensing net revenues, including mysiere $14.7 million, $32.2 million, $20.9 million éi$21.8 million representing 6%, 8%, 6%
and 6% of total net revenues in transition 200&;di 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respegtivel

Home Videc

In transition 2006, we released 22 neméwideo titles and shipped approximately 3.3 onllDVD units, including catalog titles. In
particular WrestleMania 2became our best-selling DVD of diitne by shipping more than 425,000 units. Furthgra@sion of distribution ar
more widespread retail marketing support also lietpedrive domestic sales. Beginning in Novembé&@enius Products, LLC became our
exclusive domestic distributor. Outside the Unidtes, our new releases and catalog titles atrtbdigd through licensees.

Home video net revenues were $35.5 milli?2.6 million, $20.1 million and $21.4 millioepresenting 13%, 11%, 6% and 6% of total
net revenues in transition 2006, fiscal 2006, 1i2€95 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

Magazine Publishin

In the 2006 transition period, we congdrthe publication of two magazin€é&gwandSmackDown into one flagship publicatioM/WE
Magazine. WWE Magazinéocuses on what fans will not see on televisiorisTadesigned publication gives fans a look at WhalEnt in a
lifestyle setting including in-depth features, ptmtexclusive interviews and backstage access. \BWierstars and Divas provide fans with
tips on fitness, fashion, grooming, gadgets andemor

Magazine publishing net revenues wer8 $@llion, $11.1 million, $12.2 million and $10.7iliion, representing 3% of total net reven
in transition 2006, fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 aratél 2004, respectively.

Digital Media
(represents 8%, 5%, 3% and 3% of our net revenuesi T 2006, fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2QG4éspectively)
WWE.com

Through our broadband network and siasfans can purchase our WWE branded merchandisgiew our monthly pay-per-view
events. Our primary website, WWE.com, attractedertban 16 million monthly unique users worldwidel @enerated an average of 42 mil
streams per month in transition 2006, accordinQraniture, Inc. We utilize the internet to promote our brands, avjgle information, to
entertain and to market and distribute our products

Our expanding portfolio of promotionadi-aupported and transactional video content isxaaharchival footage, breaking news stories,
original programs and live broadcasts. WWE.comatipslits information as events happen on a gladsikb

We have entered the mobile market plackvee are looking to capitalize on this emergingldwide delivery platform. We have
recently developed a mobile content managemengrsyahd entered into relationships with severatitharty partners to produce, distribute,
bill, transport, and directly sell mobile conterito provision this new outlet, we are producingesal/pieces of specific, made-forebile videc
offerings. Other types of mobile content producead/rimclude ring tones, wallpaper, themes, alerts\anice-tones.

WWE.com net revenues were $7.3 millich,7dmillion, $7.8 million and $5.6 million, repragag 3%, 2%, 2% and 1% of total net
revenues in transition 2006, fiscal 2006, fiscad2@nd fiscal 2004, respectively.

WWEShop

WWEShop is our e-commerce storefront. axjgerienced significant growth in the transitiaripd as the number of orders processed
increased to approximately 244,000 in the eighttméransition period as compared to 226,000 forethiire twelve month fiscal 2006 period.
Category offerings continued to expand as welhasstle of exclusive WWEShop packages. We alsofeatdre auctions of unique items.
WWEShop net revenues were $13.0 million, $12.1liom|l$4.5 million and $4.9 million representing 5386, 1% and 1% of total net revenues
in transition 2006, fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 aratél 2004, respectively.
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WWE Films

We established WWE Films to explore omidn filmed entertainment in order to promote Superstars and capitalize on our
intellectual property and fan base. We have retbase feature filmsSee No EviandThe Marine. See No Evi| a horror film that featured
WWE Superstar Kane and was distributed by Lionsgeds released domestically in theaters in May 2@ No Evigenerated more than
$15.0 million in gross domestic box office receigital was subsequently released on DVD in Novemb@8.2he Marineis an
action/adventure film that starred WWE SuperstanJ8ena and was distributed by Twentieth Centumy. Hdhe Marinewas released
domestically in theaters in October 2006 and geadnamore than $18.8 million in gross domestic bffice receipts and was released on DVD
in January 2007. Our third feature filhe Condemnegstarring Stone Cold Steve Austin in the lead avld to be distributed by Lionsgate, is
scheduled for theatrical release domestically inil&907. As of December 31, 2006, we have appnately $53.6 million in capitalized
feature film production assets. We do not paréitggn any revenues associated with these filmeptsjuntil the print and advertising costs
incurred by our distributors have been recoupedtbadesults have been reported back to us. Aoaglyd no revenues have been recorded to
date.

International

Revenues generated outside of North Acaesiere approximately $60.4 million for T 2006, $Rillion in fiscal 2006, $87.6 million in
fiscal 2005 and $63.5 million in fiscal 2004. Reues generated from international sources accototegbproximately 23% of total revenues
generated in T 2006, 24% in fiscal 2006 and fi2f4l5 and 17% in fiscal 2004.

Creative Development and Production

Headed by our Chairman, Vincent K. McMahaour creative team develops compelling charaetedsweaves them into dynamic
storylines that combine physical and emotional elets. Storylines are usually played out in the diresring and unfold on our weekly
television shows and on our website, and culminathange direction in our pay-per-view events.

Our results are due primarily to the dapty of our Superstars. We currently have exslesiontracts with approximately 165
Superstars, ranging from developmental contractsubi-year guaranteed contracts with establish@geSstars. Our Superstars are highly
trained and motivated independent contractors whosgensation is tied to the revenue that they hglgenerate. Popular Superstars include
Triple H, John Cena, Batista, Shawn Michaels, Utader, Rey Mysterio and Bobby Lashley. We ownrights to substantially all of our
characters, and we exclusively license the riglggiar not own through agreements with our Superstéescontinually seek to identify, recruit
and develop additional talent for our businessthis regard, we have arrangements with two wrestievelopment camps, Ohio Valley
Wrestling and Deep South Wrestling, to allow neidigntified talent the opportunity to perform fooerds and refine their skills.

Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal f@se, the entertainment industry is highly contiwetand subject to fluctuations in popularity,
which are not easy to predict. For our live, ted&m, pay-per-view and movie audiences, we facepatition from professional and college
sports as well as from other forms of live, filmead televised entertainment and other leisureitiesv In the case of feature films, many of
production companies with whom we compete havetanbally greater experience than we do. We compéth entertainment companies,
professional and college sports leagues and othk&ers of branded apparel and merchandise for theoaur branded merchandise. As we
expand into the highly competitive internet manketface increased competition from websites oftgfaid and free web-based and wireless
content. Many companies with whom we compete lygater financial resources than we do, includiithaut limitation, the film production
companies noted above.

Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to afipects of our operations, and we expend subdtaasiiand effort in an attempt to maintain and
protect our intellectual property and to mainta@mpliance vis-a-vis other parties’ intellectual pecty. We have a large portfolio of registered
and unregistered trademarks and service marks wigikdand maintain a large catalog of copyrightedkspincluding copyrights in our
television programming, music, photographs, booksgazines and apparel art. A principal focus ofedforts is to protect the intellectual
property relating to our originally created chaeastportrayed by our performers, which encompassages, likenesses, names and other
identifying indicia of these characters. We alsma@ large number of internet website domain naamelsoperate a network of developed,
content-based sites, which facilitate and contaliatthe exploitation of our intellectual propentgridwide.
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We vigorously seek to enforce our intilal property rights by, among other things, seiagthe internet to ascertain unauthorized use
of our intellectual property, seizing goods thaitége unauthorized use of our intellectual propartgt seeking restraining orders and/or
damages in court against individuals or entitiésriging our intellectual property rights. Our Ifaie to curtail piracy, infringement or other
unauthorized use of our intellectual property rigéffectively, or our infringement of others’ intadtual property rights, could adversely affect
our operating results.

Employees

Our headcount as of December 2006 waajpately 560 employees. This headcount excladesSuperstars, who are independent
contractors. Our in-house production staff is seim@nted with contract personnel for our televigiooduction. We believe that our
relationships with our employees are generallysgattory. None of our employees are representeadunyion.

Regulation
Live Events

In various states in the United States some foreign jurisdictions, athletic commissiansl other applicable regulatory agencies require
us to obtain licenses for promoters, medical cleega and/or other permits or licenses for perfosraed/or permits for events in order for u
promote and conduct our live events. In the ettemitwe fail to comply with the regulations of atpaular jurisdiction, we may be prohibited
from promoting and conducting our live events iattlurisdiction. The inability to present our liegents over an extended period of time or in
a number of jurisdictions could lead to a declim¢hie various revenue streams generated fromwielrents, which could adversely affect our
operating results.

Television Programming

The production of television programmingindependent producers is not directly reguldtethe federal or state governments, but the
marketplace for television programming in the Udiftates and internationally is substantially @ffddy government regulations applicable
to, as well as social and political influences tefgvision stations, television networks and calld satellite television systems and channels.
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry gatisuch as PG (L,V) or TV14. A numbel
governmental and private-sector initiatives relgtio the content of media programming have beeonamred. Changes in governmental policy
and private-sector perceptions could further retstiiur program content and adversely affect ouellewef viewership and operating results.

Available Information

Copies of our Transition and Annual Répon Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Qrent reports on Form 8-K, and any
amendments to those reports, are available frebarfje on our website at http://corporate.wwe.asmoon as reasonably practicable after
reports are filed with the Securities and Excha@gmmission. None of the information on any of websites is part of this Transition Report
on Form 10-K. In addition, our Corporate Governa@eedelines, Code of Business Conduct and chasfesar Audit Committee and
Compensation Committee are also available on obsitee A copy of any of these documents will beledsto any stockholder upon request
to us at World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc., 1Hst Main Street, Stamford, CT 06902, Attn: Insefelations Department.

7



Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

There are inherent risks and uncertarasgsociated with our business that could adveedtdgt our operating performance and financial
condition. Set forth below are descriptions ofsthoisks and uncertainties that we currently beligvbe material, but the risks and
uncertainties described below are not the onlysraskd uncertainties that could affect our busin&ee the discussion under “Cautionary
Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Harbor” Prowmisiof the Private Securities Litigation Reform AEL995” in Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations, in this Transition Reporfonm 10-K.

Our failure to maintain or renew key agreements cold adversely affect our ability to distribute television and pay-per-view
programming.

Our television programming is distributedbroadcast and cable networks, and our pay-ieev-programming is distributed by pay-per-
view providers. Because our revenues are genemditedtly and indirectly, from the distribution ofir televised and pay-per-view
programming, any failure to maintain or renew agements with these distributors or the failurehef distributors to continue to provide
services to us could adversely affect our operatisglts. We are regularly in negotiations refatim substantial agreements covering the
distribution of our cable, broadcast and/or pay\gew television by carriers located in the Unitethtes or abroad.

Our failure to continue to develop creative and erdrtaining programs and events would likely lead t@ decline in the popularity
of our brand of entertainment.

The creation, marketing and distributddrour live and televised entertainment, includouy pay-per-view events, is at the core of our
business and is critical to our ability to generateenues across our media platforms and produleteu Our failure to continue to create
popular live events and televised programming wdikkly lead to a decline in our television ratireysd attendance at our live events, which
would adversely affect our operating results.

Ouir failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal ofur storylines and the
popularity of our brand of entertainment.

Our success depends, in large part, opombility to recruit, train and retain athletierformers who have the physical presence, acting
ability and charisma to portray characters in owg events and televised programming. We canrstrasyou that we will be able to continue
to identify, train and retain these performershia tuture. Additionally, we cannot assure you thatwill be able to retain our current
performers during the terms of their contracts bewtheir contracts expire. Our failure to attrad retain key performers, or a serious or
untimely injury to, or the death of, or unexpectegpremature loss or retirement for any reasomgfad our key performers, could lead to a
decline in the appeal of our storylines and theutemity of our brand of entertainment, which coaltiversely affect our operating results.

The loss of the creative services of Vincent K. Mcihon could adversely affect our ability to create ppular characters and
creative storylines.

For the foreseeable future, we will depbravily on the vision and services of VincentMcMahon. In addition to serving as Chairman
of our board of directors, Mr. McMahon leads theative team that develops the storylines and theackers for our televised programming
and live events. Mr. McMahon is also an importaeimber of the cast of performers. The loss ofMrMahon due to unexpected retirement,
disability or death or other unexpected terminafmmany reason could have a material adversetaffeour ability to create popular characters
and creative storylines, which could adverselyciféair operating results.

A decline in general economic conditions could adveely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by generahemic conditions, which may affect consumers’ digble income. The demand for
entertainment and leisure activities tends to pélirisensitive to the level of consumers’ disposabtome. A decline in general economic
conditions could reduce the level of discretionagome that our fans and potential fans have tadpa our live and televised entertainment
and consumer products, which could adversely affectevenues.

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sportsentertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political
climate, could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumes and entertainment trends, which are unpadxécand subject to change and may be
affected by changes in the social and politicahatie. Our programming is created to evoke a paggaesponse from our fans. A change in
our fans’ tastes or a material change in the péia@pof our business partners, including our tistors and licensees, whether as a result of
the social and political climate or otherwise, cbativersely affect our operating results.
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Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related prate-sector initiatives could adversely affect oubusiness.

While the production of television progmaing by independent producers is not directly t&tgal by the federal or state governments in
the United States, the marketplace for televisimgmmming in the United States is affected sigaifitly by government regulations applice
to, as well as social and political influences tefgvision stations, television networks and calnld satellite television systems and channels.
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry gatisuch as PG (L,V) or TV14. A numbel
domestic and foreign governmental and private-segtiiatives relating to the content of media pragming have been announced in recent
years. Changes in these governmental policiepewnate-sector perceptions could further restrict our paog content and adversely affect our
levels of viewership and operating results.

The markets in which we operate are highly competite, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedand we may not be able
to compete effectively, especially against compatits with greater financial resources or marketplacepresence.

For our live, television and pay-péew audiences, we face competition from professi@amd college sports, as well as from other fc
of live and televised entertainment and other keisictivities in a rapidly changing and increagifghgmented marketplace. The manner in
which audio/video content is distributed and vievisedonstantly changing, and while we attempt stritiute our content across all platforms,
our failure to continue to do so effectively coaldiversely affect our operating results. For the shbur consumer products, we compete with
entertainment companies, professional and collpgeasleagues and other makers of branded appateharchandise. Many of the compa
with whom we compete have greater financial resesithan we do.

Our failure to compete effectively couddult in a significant loss of viewers, venuestrithution channels or performers and fewer
entertainment and advertising dollars spent orfaun of sports entertainment, any of which couldexdely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with internationainarkets.

Our production of live events oversedgextts us to the risks involved in foreign travetal regulations, including regulations requiring
us to obtain visas for our performers. In additite licensing of our television and consumer puotsl in international markets exposes us to
some degree of currency risk. All internationa¢igiions are subject to political instability inBet in varying degrees in those markets. These
risks could adversely affect our operating resaittd impair our ability to pursue our business stiatas it relates to international markets.

We may be prohibited from promoting and conductingour live events if we do not comply with applicableegulations.

In various states in the United States some foreign jurisdictions, athletic commissiansl other applicable regulatory agencies require
us to obtain licenses for promoters, medical cleaga and/or other permits or licenses for perfosraed/or permits for events in order for u
promote and conduct our live events. In the ettemitwe fail to comply with the regulations of atpaular jurisdiction, we may be prohibited
from promoting and conducting our live events iattlurisdiction. The inability to present our liegents over an extended period of time or in
a number of jurisdictions could lead to a declimé¢hie various revenue streams generated fromaielients, which could adversely affect our
operating results.

Because we depend upon our intellectual property ghts, our inability to protect those rights or ourinfringement of others’
intellectual property rights could adversely affectour business.

Our inability to protect our large potifoof trademarks, service marks, copyrighted nmat@nd characters, trade names and other
intellectual property rights from piracy, countétifeg or other unauthorized use could negativefgectfour business. Intellectual property is
material to all aspects of our operations, and xpeed substantial cost and effort in an attempbaintain and protect our intellectual property
and to maintain compliance vis-a-vis other partietllectual property. We have a large portfolfaegistered and unregistered trademarks
service marks worldwide and maintain a large catafiocopyrighted works, including copyrights to delevision programming, music,
photographs, books, magazines and apparel artingipal focus of our efforts is to protect thedtéctual property relating to our originally
created characters portrayed by our performers;iwdmncompasses images, likenesses, names anddethiEfiying indicia of these characters.
We also own a large number of Internet website domames and operate a network of developed, cbhesed sites, which facilitate and
contribute to the exploitation of our intellectymbperty worldwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intetilal property rights by, among other things, deiagthe Internet to ascertain unauthorized use
of our intellectual property, seizing at our liveeats goods that feature unauthorized use of delléctual property and seeking restraining
orders and/or damages in court against individoabntities infringing our intellectual propertghits. Our failure to curtail piracy,
infringement or other unauthorized use of our latglial property rights effectively, or our infriagient of others’ intellectual property rights,
could adversely affect our operating results.



We could incur substantial liabilities if pending material litigation is resolved unfavorably.
We are currently a party to civil litigart, which, if concluded adversely to our interestauld adversely affect our operating results.

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for tdae and its American affiliate, The World Wildlifeund (collectively, the “Fund”), instituted
legal proceedings against us in the English Highr€seeking injunctive relief and unspecified daesfpr alleged breaches of a 1994
agreement between the Fund and us regarding thef tise initials “wwf.” In August 2001, the trifidge granted the Fund’s motion for
summary judgment, holding that we breached theesmgeat by using the initials “wwf” in connection Wwitertain of our website addresses and
our former scratch logo. The English Court of Aalsesubsequently upheld that ruling. Since NoveriBe2002, we have been subject to an
injunction barring us, either on our own or throwmlr officers, servants, agents, subsidiariesnfees or sub-licensees, our television or other
affiliates or otherwise, of most uses of the itdtiavwf,” including in connection with the “wwf” wiasite addresses and the use of our former
scratch logo.

As part of its original complaint, theri€lincluded a damages claim associated with oupiigee initials “wwf.” On October 29, 2004,
the Fund filed a claim for damages in the EnglisghHCourt. In this filing, the Fund seeks substmhonetary claims in an amount calculated
as a royalty based on a percentage of profits frertain of our revenue streams, otherwise refaoexd restitutionary damages, over the pe
January 1997 through November 2002. On Janua@9@,, we filed an application to determine as édirpieary issue the propriety of the
Fund'’s basis upon which damages have been claiiftdr a hearing relating to this preliminary issmejudgment dated February 16, 2006,
the Court ruled that the Fund is entitled in paifitaw to seek restitutionary damages, but thatestion whether the Fund is entitled in point
of fact to claim or recover damages on that basigains to be determined, and we have appealedebision. The Fund was ordered to
provide further clarification of its claim by Mar&) 2006, and the Fund has made such a filing thighCourt; however we believe that this
alleged clarification does not comply with the Giésiorder. In response to an application madeheyGompany, on June 26, 2006, the Fund
was ordered to provide further clarification ofd@amages claim. The Fund made such further fdimguly 21, 2006. All proceedings are
stayed pending the outcome of our appeal of thet'sdeebruary 16, 2006 judgment that the Fund tgtled in point of law to seek
restitutionary damages. A hearing on this appealioed in December 2006.

We strongly dispute that the Fund hagesefl any loss or damage, and do not believe tlegtdre entitled to restitutionary damages. We
believe that we have strong defenses to the Fumti&rranted monetary claims and will vigorouslyedef against them. We cannot quantify
the potential impact that an unfavorable outcomthefdamages claim could have on our financial itmmd results of operations or liquidity;
however, based on the Fund’s assertions, it coallchéterial.

Our insurance may not be adequate to cover liabilies resulting from accidents or injuries that occurduring our physically
demanding events.

We hold numerous live events each yd@is schedule exposes our performers and our eraptoywho are involved in the production of
those events to the risk of travel and performaetated accidents, the consequences of which mialgenfully covered by insurance. The
physical nature of our events exposes our perfanuethe risk of serious injury or death. Althoumir performers, as independent contractors,
are responsible for maintaining their own healtbaklility and life insurance, we self-insure healttverage for our performers in the event that
they are injured while performing. We also seBtire a substantial portion of any other liabilltatwe could incur relating to such injuries.
Liability to us resulting from any death or serioogiry sustained by one of our performers whilef@ening, to the extent not covered by our
insurance, could adversely affect our operatingltes

We face a variety of risks relating to new and compmentary businesses, including feature films.

We have entered into new or complemertaginesses in the past and may do so again fotine. For example, we have recently
entered into the feature film business. Risksxp@sion may include: potential diversion of mamaget’s attention and other resources,
including available cash, from our existing bussasanticipated liabilities or contingencies; reeld earnings due to increased amortization,
impairment charges and other costs; competitiom fother companies with experience in such busisessel possible additional regulatory
requirements and compliance costs.

Through his beneficial ownership of a substantial rjority of our Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon ca exercise control ove
our affairs, and his interests may conflict with tke holders of our Class A common stock.

We have two classes of common stockuitiog Class A common stock and Class B common stdtle holders of Class A common
stock generally have rights identical to holder€ta#ss B common stock, except that holders of Chassmmon stock are entitled to one vote
per share, and holders of Class B common stockraited to ten votes per share. Holders of btakses of common stock generally will vote
together as a single class on all matters prese¢atstckholders for their vote or approval, exapdtherwise required by applicable Delaware
law.
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A substantial majority of the issued andstanding shares of Class B common stock is oweedficially by Vincent K. McMahon,
either directly or indirectly as the trustee of TWiacent K. McMahon 2004 Irrevocable Trust. Mr. Makibn controls approximately 95% of
voting power of the issued and outstanding sharesiocommon stock. Through his beneficial owngrsif a substantial majority of our Cle
B common stock, Mr. McMahon effectively can exeeat®ntrol over our affairs, and his interest carddflict with the holders of our Class A
common stock. In addition, the voting power of MicMahon through his ownership of our Class B comramck could discourage others
from initiating potential mergers, takeovers orestbhange of control transactions. As a resudtntlarket price of our Class A common stock
could decline.

A substantial number of shares will be eligible forfuture sale by Mr. McMahon, and the sale of thosshares could lower our stoc
price.

Although the company is not aware of angh plans, sales of substantial amounts ofadass B common stock by Mr. McMahon, or
perception that such sales could occur, may loleptevailing market price of our Class A commarckt

Our Class A common stock has a relatively small pulz “float.”

Historically, as a result of our relativemall public float, our Class A common stock haen less liquid than the common stock of
companies with broader public ownership, and thditig prices for our Class A common stock have lmeere volatile than generally may be
the case for more widely-held common stock. Amotiger things, trading of a relatively small voluofeour Class A common stock may have
a greater impact on the trading price of our CRagemmon stock than would be the case if our pulbdiat were larger.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.
Item 2. Properties

We have executive offices, television angbsic recording studios, post-production operatiand warehouses at locations in or near
Stamford, Connecticut, and have offices in New Ydamtdndon, Toronto and Los Angeles. We own the liogd in which our executive and
administrative offices, our television and musicareling studios and our post-production operatameslocated. We lease space for our sales
offices, WWE Films office, and other facilities.

Our principal properties consist of tbédwing:

Facility Location Square Feet Owned/Leased Expiration Date of Lease
Executive offices Stamford, CT 114,300 Owned —

Production studit Stamford, CT 39,000 Owned —

Ring/Photo studi Stamford, CT 5,600 Leasec May 11, 200¢
Executive office Los Angeles, C/ 2,100 Leasec July 15, 2007

Sales office: Various 16,400 Leasec Various through April 9, 201

All of the facilities listed above ardlized in our Live and Televised Entertainment, €amer Products and Digital Media segments,
with the exception of the executive office in Loageles, which focuses exclusively on our WWE Fisagment.

In addition, we own a daycare facilityStamford, Connecticut on property adjacent topyoduction facilities. The licensing and
operation of this facility is managed by a thirdtgacontractor. We have the responsibility to abthe required licenses and to ensure that the
facility meets health, safety, fire and buildingles.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding

See Note 12 to Notes to Consolidatedriizh Statements, which is incorporated hereindfgrence.
Item 4. Submission of matters to a vote of Sequtitolders

None.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Class A common stock trades on the Merk Stock Exchange under the symbol “WWE.”

The following table sets forth the higidahe low sale prices for the shares of Classrroon stock as reported by the New York Stock

Exchange and the dividends paid on shares of @Glasgl Class B common stock for the periods inditate

Fiscal year 2005

Quarter Ended July 30 October 29 January 28 April 30 Full Year
Class A common stock price per she
High $ 139C $ 129¢  $ 1347 $ 1298 % 13.9(
Low $ 1150 $ 11.18  $ 11.2¢ $ 104t $ 10.4¢
Class A and Class B dividends paid per sl $ 0.06 $ 0.06 $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.3€
Fiscal year 2006
Quarter Ended July 29 October 28 January 27 April 30 Full Year
Class A common stock price per she
High $ 12.4¢ $ 13.8C $ 159 $ 176( $ 17.6(
Low $ 991 $ 11.8¢ % 123t % 1422 $ 9.91
Class A and Class B dividends paid per sl $ 01z $ 01z $ 02, $ 024 $ 0.7z
Transition period 2006
Quarter Ended July 28 October 27 December 31 Full Period
Class A common stock price per she
High $ 17.7F  $ 1698 $ 16.7¢ $ 17.7¢
Low $ 155 % 149¢ $ 156C $ 14.9¢
Class A and Class B dividends paid per sl $ 024 $ 02, % 024 $ 0.7z

There were 11,794 holders of record @s8IA common stock and three holders of recordadstB common stock on February 23,

2007.

On February 16, 2007, the Board of Dwestwuthorized a quarterly cash dividend of $0cd2ghareholders of record on March 15, 2007

that will be paid on or about March 26, 2007.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certaifoirmation with respect to securities authorizedi$suance under equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2006.

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for
to be issued upon Weighted-average future issuance under
exercise of outstanding exercise price of equity compensation plans
options, warrants outstanding options, (excluding securities
and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsh
Stock options 1,715,301 $ 13.1¢ 4,266,38I
Restricted stock uni 1,087,13 N/A Same as abo
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtgers None N/A None
Total 2,802,431 $ 13.1¢ 4,266,38I

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat

The following table sets forth our sedgtfinancial data for the eight month transitionipe ended December 31, 2006 and each of the
five fiscal years in the period ended April 30, 80The selected financial data as of December 326 2April 30, 2006 and April 30, 2005 and
for the eight month transition period ended Decan®ie 2006 and fiscal years ended April 30, 2006il/80, 2005 and April 30, 2004 have
been derived from the audited consolidated findrsté&aements included elsewhere in this TransiReport. The selected financial data as of
April 30, 2004, April 30, 2003 and April 30, 2008dfor the fiscal years ended April 30, 2003 andilAgD, 2002 have been derived from our
audited consolidated financial statements, whiehnat included in this Transition Report. You sldoead the selected financial data in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statetseand related notes and the information set fantter “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” contained elsewhere in this Transition Repo

T 2006 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Financial Highlights:
Net revenue $ 262.¢ % 400.1 $ 366.c $ 374¢ % 374 $ 409.€
Operating incomt $ 39z % 70 % 50.2 $ 73€ $ 26.€ $ 447
Income from continuing operatiol $ 31 $ 47.C $ 37.¢ $ 496 $ 16.1 $ 37.7
Net income (loss) (1 $ 31 $ 47.C $ 391 $ 482 $ (19.5) $ 38.¢
Earnings per share from continui
operations, dilute $ 044 $ 067 $ 05/ $ 07z $ 02z $ 0.51
Earnings (loss) per share, dilut $ 044 $ 0.67 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.7C $ 0.2¢) $ 0.5¢
Dividends paid per sha $ 07z % 07z $ 03¢ $ 0.1¢€ N/A N/A
Cash and shc-term investment $ 2482 % 280.¢ $ 258.1 $ 273 % 2711 % 293.¢
Total asset $ 4532 $ 479.¢  $ 441.¢  $ 454.:  $ 4322 $ 491.(
Total debi $ 6.7 $ 72 % 8C $ 87 $ 9¢ $ 9.¢
Total stockholder equity $ 385.7 $ 396.z $ 375t % 353.1 % 3374 % 385.1

Q) Included in our net income (loss) was the operatasyllts of our discontinued operatiofbe Worldand the XFL, and their respective
estimated shutdown costs, which totaled approxin&$@, $0, $1.4, ($1.4), ($35.6) and ($0.3) during006, fiscal 2006, 2005, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respective
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Iltem 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

You should read the following discussioronjunction with the audited consolidated fin@hstatements and related notes included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Background

Due to the change to a calendar yearwadave established an eight month transitiorogdrom May 1, 2006 through December 31,
2006. The results from the 2006 eight month tteorsiperiod (“T 2006”) are compared to the previgussued results for the twelve month
period ended April 30, 2006 (“2006") in the follawg analysis. Due the difference in the time pevimdolved, the periods are not readily
comparable and as such we have removed the ‘vetieé’ column from the analysis for these perio@grtain unaudited information on the
comparable eight month period ended December 35 Blincluded in footnote 3 of the Notes to Coitlaiked Financial Statements.

In fiscal 2006 we expanded the numbeyusfreportable segments to four in order to be#Bect the manner in which management
analyzes the performance of our Company, includimgdigital media businesses and the productideatiire films. We have also reclassif
certain other operations between the reportablmeats. All prior year information has been adjddtereflect the current presentation. The
following analysis outlines all material activitieentained within each segment.

Live and Televised Entertainment

* Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te vents, sales of merchandise at these live euetgsision rights fees, sales
advertising and sponsorships, and fees for viewinmgpay-per-view and video on demand programmi

Consumer Products

» Revenues consist principally of sales of WWE pradlisome videos, magazine publishing, and royattidieense fees related
various WWE themed products such as video gamgs aied books

Digital Media

* Revenues consist principally of advertising sale®or websites, sale of merchandise on our webisiteigh our WWESho
internet storefront and the sale of various broadksnd mobile conter

WWE Films

» Consists of the production and distribution of #ichentertainment featuring our Superstars. Althaughfeature films wer
released in the 2006 transition period, no revehage been recorded to date as we do not pargcipatvenues until the print
and advertising costs incurred by our distributtage been recouped and the results have beeneadtortis

We provide updated information on the Heyers of our business including live event ati@mce, pay-per-view buys, home video
shipments, website traffic, and online merchandédes on a monthly basis on our corporate web#ijte/lcorporate.wwe.comSuch
information is not incorporated herein by reference

Results of Operations

Eight Month Transition Period Ended Decerer 31, 2006 compared to Twelve Month Fiscal Yearrged April 30, 2006
(dollars in millions)

Summary
Net Revenues T 2006 2006
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 183.C $ 290.¢
Consumer Produc 59.2 86.4
Digital Media 20.7 22.¢
WWE Films — —
Total $ 262.¢ $ 400.1
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Cost of Revenues T 2006 2006

Live and Televised Entertainme $ 114¢ $ 178.¢
Consumer Produc 28.7 34.4
Digital Media 13.t 14.2
WWE Films — —
Total $ 157.1 $ 227.2
Profit contribution margit 40% 43%
Operating Income: T 2006 2006

Live and Televised Entertainme $ 57.C $ 93.¢
Consumer Produc 26.¢ 46.4
Digital Media 3.8 2.9
WWE Films 1.3 1.3
Corporate (47.9 (71.9)
Total operating incom $ 392 $ 70.5
Income from continuing operatiol $ 31€ $ 47.C

Our eight month 2006 transition periogulés were positively impacted by several factdrsour Live and Televised Entertainment
segment, our live events reflected strong North Ata@ attendance and corresponding sales of medd®at these events. In our Consumer
Products segment, our home video business contitaugalpass previous shipment records as the nuafli@vDs shipped in the eight month
transition period exceeded shipments for the etwisdve month fiscal 2006 period. These positivedes were offset, in part, by the absenc
$13.7 million of domestic cable advertising satesur Live and Televised Entertainment segment,tdweir agreement with the USA
Network.

Revenues derived from international sesimepresented 23% and 24% of total net revenuég iB006 transition period and fiscal 2006,
respectively.

Additional details regarding these sumpnrasults follow below.

The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Live and Televigadertainment segment:

Revenue- Live and Televised Entertainment T 2006 2006
Live events $ 52.2 $ 75.C
Number of North American even 212 24¢
Average North American attendar 4,86( 4,99(
Average North American ticket price (dolla $ 355: $ 37.3¢
Number of international even 34 52
Average international attendan 8,29( 9,16(
Average international ticket price (dolla $ 68.47 $ 69.1¢
Venue merchandis $ 121 $ 147
Domestic per capita spending (dolla $ 10.8¢ $ 10.57
Pay-pel-view $ 534 $ 94.¢
Number of pa-pel-view events 11 16
Number of buys from pépel-view events 3,287,30! 6,241,10!
Average revenue per buy (dolla $ 15.4¢ $ 14.9¢
Domestic retail price, excludirWrestleManig(dollars) $ 39.9t 3 34.9¢
Advertising $ 45 % 22.¢
Sponsorship revenu $ 0t $ 2.8
Television rights fee
Domestic $ 38.C $ 53.C
International $ 20.7 $ 28.t
Other $ 2C $ 2.2
Total $ 183.C $ 290.¢
Ratings
Average weekly household ratings for R 3.9 4.0
Average weekly household ratings for SmackDc 2.4 2.8

Average weekly household ratings for EC 1.9 —
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Cost of Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainment T 2006 2006

Live events $ 40¢ $ 56.¢
Venue merchandis 8.1 10.€
Pay-pel-view 19.2 42.2
Advertising (0. 6.8
Television 40.4 53.€
Other 6.3 8.1
Total $ 114.¢ $ 178.¢
Profit contribution margit 37% 39%

Live events revenue reflects approxinya$36.6 million for North American events and $1Biflion for international events in the 20
transition period as compared to $46.7 millionNamrth American events and $28.3 for internationangs in fiscal 2006. During the 2006
transition period, average attendance at our Nontlerican events was approximately 4,900 while ayetendance at our international
events was 8,300. This compares to fiscal 2006H\N®merican average attendance of approximatel§®ahd average international
attendance of 9,200. We produced 38 Extreme Charsbip Wrestling (“ECW”) branded events in the titios period which had an average
attendance of 1,100 and an average ticket priepppfoximately $25.00. ECW events were held in Bnaknues which generated lower
attendance and revenues per event as compared Ramand SmackDowtbrands. Going forward, ECW'’s live events will berdained with
SmackDowmntil the brand is large enough to tour indeperigeriExcluding our ECW events, North American averagenatance was
approximately 5,700 in the transition period, did&b increase from fiscal 2006. The live eventdipecontribution margin was 22% in the
eight month transition period as compared to 24%éntwelve month fiscal 2006 period. This declim@rofit contribution was due, in part, to
the costs associated with the production of the E&hts in the transition period.

Venue merchandise revenues in transR06 were positively impacted by the increase intiNAmerican average attendance as the per
capita spending dollars for venue sales were ctamgisvith fiscal 2006. The venue merchandise pomfintribution margin was 33% in the ei
month transition period as compared to 28% inwete month fiscal 2006 period. This increaserisfipmargin reflects a reduction in
building rental costs in the 2006 transition period

Pay-periew revenue reflects approximately 3.3 million bug the 2006 transition period as compared ta@l#on buys in fiscal 2006
The domestic retail price of our pay-per-view egangs increased from $34.95 to $39.95 in July 208§ esenting our first increase in retail
price in more than four years. The average nurabbuys reported for the ten events that occumdabith the 2006 transition period and fiscal
2006 were 300,000 and 325,000, respectively. Téddine in the number of buys was offset, in paytthe increased domestic retail price.
International buys, which carry a lower price peylrepresented 39% of total buys during the ttaorsperiod as compared to 37% of total
buys in fiscal 2006. The pay-per-view profit canfition margin was 64% in the eight month transitperiod as compared to 55% in the
twelve month fiscal 2006 period. The fiscal 20@8ipd included an investment in global marketinmpaigns in support of our pay-per-view
programming which consequently reduced the profitgim.

Advertising revenues in the current titois period include sales of advertising on oun@dian television programs and various
sponsorship packages that totaled approximately ®lion. Under the terms of our domestic cablgtrifution agreement with USA Netwo
which began in October 2005, we no longer sellastigipate in any domestic cable advertising. dkerease in advertising cost of revenues
reflects the absence of costs associated witmgallbomestic cable advertising in the transitioriquer

Domestic television rights fees in th@&@ransition period reflect payments receiveddiar ECW program on the SCI FI Channel that
were not included in fiscal 2006. Internationahtigfees for the 2006 transition period are coestswith rights fees received in fiscal 2006.
The television profit contribution margin was 31#dale eight month transition period as comparegiés in fiscal 2006. This reduction is d
in part, to an overall increase in the costs iretito produce televised events, including additidiract costs for the production of our weekly
ECW television program.
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The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Consumer Produsgsrent:

Revenue- Consumer Products T 2006 2006
Licensing $ 147 $ 32.2
Magazine publishin $ 85 $ 11.1
Net units solc 2,793,60! 4,096,70!
Home videc $ 358 % 42.€
Gross DVD units shippe 3,283,80! 2,883,20!
Other $ 0t $ 0.5
Total $ 5.2 $ 86.4
Cost of Revenues-Consumer Products T 2006 2006
Licensing $ 38 $ 8.5
Magazine publishin 6.8 6.S
Home videc 17.¢ 18.€
Other 0.3 04
Total $ 28.7 $ 34.4
Profit contribution margit 52% 60%

Licensing revenues in the 2006 transifieriod reflect approximately $5.0 million in theytcategory, $2.9 million in the videogame
category and $3.3 million related to novelties apgarel. In fiscal 2006, revenues reflected apprately $8.5 million in the toy category,
$14.5 million in the videogame category and $4.Bioni related to novelties and apparel. Videogameenue is dependent upon the release
schedule of new games and licensees reportingisesulls. Fiscal 2006 reflects revenues from tem titles released as compared to no
revenues reported for new releases in the trangi@siod. Revenues from our latest videogame seleall be reported in 2007. Licensing cost
of revenue consists primarily of talent royaltiesl@gent commissions paid to our licensing agehte licensing profit contribution margin
was 74% in both the eight month 2006 transitionqeeand the twelve month fiscal 2006 period.

In July 2006, we began publishing a neagarine titedVWE Magazinéhat replaced our two former magazineawandSmackDown.
Including magazine special issues, we publishetgsixissues in the 2006 transition period as coeaptr thirty-two issues in fiscal 2006. The
magazine publishing profit contribution margin w286 in the eight month transition period as comgaoe38% in the twelve month fiscal
2006 period. The decline in the profit contribatimargin reflects our increased editorial and aonéests associated with producing our new
WWE Magazine

Home video revenue reflects the saleppfaximately 3.3 million gross DVD units in the ZD@ansition period as compared to 2.9
million gross units in fiscal 2006. Included ireteuccessful titles released in the 2006 transpieiod wasNrestleMania22, which shipped
approximately 425,000 gross units, representindangest selling DVD release in our history. Tiherease in home video costs is primarily
due to the increased volume of home video saléeitransition period, reflecting higher duplicatiand distribution fees. The home video
profit contribution margin was 50% in the 2006 s#ion period as compared to 56% in fiscal 2008ecting a decline in the sell-through
percentage in the transition period.

The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Digital Media segine

Revenues- Digital Media T 2006 2006
WWE.com $ 73 $ 9.7
WWEShop $ 13.C $ 12.1
Average revenues per order (dolle $ 53.2¢ $ 53.4:
Other $ 04 $ 1.1
Total $ 20.7 $ 22.C
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Cost of Revenues-Digital Media T 2006 2006

WWE.com $ 43 % 5.2
WWEShop 8.5 7.8
Other 0.7 1.2
Total $ 135 % 14.2
Profit contribution margit 35% 38%

WWE.com revenue in the 2006 transitionqeereflects approximately $5.5 million in adventig revenues as compared to $7.3 million
in fiscal 2006. Revenues for other internet bageetations in the transition period, including wekts of pay-per-view events, subscription
based content and wireless content were $1.8 miliocompared to $2.4 million in fiscal 2006. WHM&/E.com profit contribution margin was
41% in the 2006 transition period as compared &b #6fiscal 2006. The reduction in the profit marga the transition period reflects higher
content based expenses.

WWEShop revenue in the 2006 transitiorggereflects approximately 244,000 customer or@srsompared to approximately 226,000
orders received in the twelve month period of fig@06. The sale of exclusive WWEShop packagesaandcrease in the category offerings
available on WWEShop contributed to the increag@énumber of orders. The WWEShop profit conttittumargin was 35% in the 2006
transition period as compared to 36% in fiscal 2006

WWE FILMS

During the eight month 2006 transitiomipe we released two feature filnfSee No EviandThe Marine to theaters in widespread
distribution. See No Evilvas released domestically in theaters in May 20@ban DVD in November 200G he Marinewas released
domestically in theaters in October 2006 and on O Danuary 2007, subsequent to year end. Durie@®06 transition period we incurred
approximately $16.9 million in capitalized produxcticosts for our third feature filnthe Condemnegdwhich is scheduled for release in April
2007. As of December 31, 2006 we have recordetbappately $53.6 million in capitalized featurenfilproduction costs. We do not
participate in any revenues associated with thigeepfojects until the print and advertising coistsurred by our distributors have been
recouped and the results have been reported tdasordingly, no revenues have been recorded i€ transition period.

The following chart reflects the amouatgertain significant overhead items:

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses T 2006 2006

Staff relatec $ 29.¢ $ 44.7
Legal, accounting and other professic 6.1 10.€
Stock compensatic 4.8 4.7
Advertising and promotio 34 5.2
Bad debt (1.6) (A5
All other 18.4 25.¢€
Total SG&A $ 61.C $ 91.c
SG&A as a percentage of net reven 23% 23%

Legal and accounting fees were reduceddriransition period based on the number of aaases in litigation and a reduction in the
cost of Sarbanes-Oxley compliance. The fiscal 28@6unt of legal and other professional expensgsded a $2.1 million benefit for net
positive legal settlements. Bad debt expensedrrtnsition period reflects the reversal of praslyg reserved accounts for which we expect to
recover.

T 2006 2006

Depreciation and amortizatic $ 56 $ 10.t

Depreciation and amortization expensedeatined as the amount of capitalized propergmnpand equipment and film libraries that
became fully depreciated and amortized continuagddiease.

T 2006 2006

Investment incom $ 64 $ 7.4

Investment income in the transition pedias increased based on higher short term intextest and decreases in realized investment
losses
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T 2006 2006
Interest expens $ 0.4 0.6

T 2006 2006
Other income, ne $ 0.9 0.6
Provision for Income Taxes T 2006 2006
Provision $ 14.F 30.¢
Effective tax rate 31% 40%

The transition period effective tax retdéower than historical rates due to increasedeteampt interest, increased tax benefits from
domestic production activities and the favorablement of income tax examinations. In additidre effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 was

higher than historical rates primarily due to readl capital losses and an increase in state aatties.

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2006 comparetb Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2005 (dollars in nilions)

Summary

better
Net Revenues 2006 2005 (worse)
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 290.¢ $ 299.k (3)%
Consumer Produc 86.4 53.¢ 60%
Digital Media 22.€ 13.C 76%
WWE Films — — —
Total $ 400.1 $ 366.4 9%

better
Cost of Revenues 2006 2005 (worse)
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 178.¢ $ 181.¢ 2%
Consumer Produc 34.4 23.2 (48)%
Digital Media 14.2 8.2 (73)%
WWE Films — — —
Total $ 2272 $ 213.C (M%
Profit contribution margit 43% 42%

better
Operating Income: 2006 2005 (worse)
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 93¢ $ 100.¢€ (7%
Consumer Produc 46.4 26.€ 72%
Digital Media 2.9 1.2 142%
WWE Films (1.9 (2.0 (300%
Corporate (71.9) (77.9) 8%
Total operating incom $ 70t $ 50.5 40%
Income from continuing operatiol $ 47.C $ 37.€ 24%

The increase in net revenues and opgratoome for fiscal 2006 principally reflected atitatial pay-per-view buys in our Live and
Televised Entertainment segment and the growthuoficensing and home video businesses in our Goas®Products segment. Also, the
revenues associated with WWEShop, our internetcbstegefront, more than doubled from the fiscal2008hich drove the increase in the
Digital Media segment. These increases were offisgiart, by the absence of $17.5 million from dmtic cable advertising sales in our Live
and Televised Entertainment segment, due to oweagent with the USA Network. Revenues derived fiot@rnational sources represented
24% of total net revenues in both fiscal 2006 asckd 2005.

19



Additional details regarding these sumpnrasults follow below.

The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Live and Televigadertainment segment:

better

Revenues- Live and Televised Entertainment 2006 2005 (worse)

Live events $ 75.C $ 78.1 (5)%
Number of North American even 24¢ 27¢€ (10)%
Average North American attendar 4,99( 4,25( 17%
Average North American ticket price (dolla $ 37.3¢ % 38.61 (3)%
Number of international even 52 49 6%
Average international attendan 9,16( 9,07( 1%
Average international ticket price (dolla $ 69.1¢ $ 74.5¢ (7%

Venue merchandis $ 147 $ 12.¢ 15%
Domestic per capita spending (dollz $ 10.57 $ 9.54 11%

Pay-pel-view $ 94.¢ $ 85.t 11%
Number of pa-pel-view events 16 14 14%
Number of buys from péepel-view events 6,241,10! 5,280,80! 18%
Average revenue per buy (dolla $ 14.9¢ $ 15.9¢ (6)%
Domestic retail price, excludirWrestleManig(dollars) $ 349t 3 34.9¢ —

Advertising $ 22€ $ 43.7 (48)%
Sponsorship revenu $ 28 $ 4.7 (40)%

Television rights fee
Domestic $ 53.C $ 53.2 —
International $ 28t $ 24.¢ 15%

Other $ 22 % 0.8 175%

Total $ 290.¢ $ 299.t (3)%

Ratings
Average weekly household ratings for R 4.C 3.7 8%
Average weekly household ratings for SmackDc 2.8 3.2 (13)%

better

Cost of Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainment 2006 2005 (worse)

Live events $ 56.¢ $ 59.¢ 5%

Venue merchandis 10.€ 8.4 (26)%

Pay-pel-view 42.2 36.8 (16)%

Advertising 6.8 14.€ 53%

Television 53.¢ 53.¢ —

Other 8.3 8.8 6%

Total $ 178.¢ $ 181.¢ 2%
Profit contribution margit 39% 39%

Live events revenue decreased primatrily t a lower average ticket price in fiscal 20§Jg&cifically in international markets. This
decline in revenues was offset, in part, by andase in the average attendance. In fiscal 200Began broadcasting our Raw and SmackLC
shows from international locations at certain tirdaging our international tours. We broadcasted felevision shows from international
locations with total attendance of approximately089 and an average ticket price of $76.00 in fiR086, as compared to six of these types of
shows in fiscal 2005 with total attendance of agpnately 77,000 and an average ticket price of axipnately $90.00, which generated a
decline in revenues in the current year of appraxéty $4.2 million. The decrease in live eventstas revenues was primarily attributable to
the production of 25 fewer events in fiscal 2006.
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Venue merchandise revenues increasetbchigher domestic per capita spending dollarséue sales. The increase in venue
merchandise cost of revenues was due to the volundéype of products sold at our live events indi2006.

Pay-periew revenues increased due to the recording ofoiapately 960,000 additional buys in fiscal 20@&6campared to fiscal 200
There were 16 pay-per-view events produced in lfi886 as compared to 14 events in fiscal 2005.tMoeadditional events comprised
approximately 524,000 of the total additional bggserated in fiscal 2006. International buys, \Whdarry a lower price per buy, continued to
rise, representing 37% of total buys during fi2@06 as compared to 30% of total buys in fiscal200’he increase in pay-per-view cost of
revenues is due, in part, to approximately $3.2ionilof costs related to the production of the &dulitional events in fiscal 2005, as well as an
investment in global marketing campaigns in suppbdur pay-per-view business and the WWE brand.

Advertising revenues decreased due taloorestic cable distribution agreement wherebyRaw program and a orfeeur weekend Ra
branded program air on USA Network. Under the geafithis agreement, we no longer sell or partigipa any advertising revenue generated
by these programs. We receive rights fees from BigAwvork similar to those received from SpikeTV,igkhaired Raw until October 2005.
Advertising revenues in fiscal 2006 also includesaf advertising on our Canadian television paogs and various sponsorship packages tha
totaled approximately $8.9 million. The decreasadvertising cost of revenues reflects the absehcests associated with selling domestic
cable advertising for seven months of fiscal 2006.

The increase in international rights fEeghe current year is primarily due to increasexknues generated in India and South Korea.

The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Consumer Produsgsrent:

better

Revenues- Consumer Products 2006 2005 (worse)
Licensing $ 322 $ 20.¢ 54%
Magazine publishin $ 111 $ 12.2 (9)%
Net units solc 4,096,70! 4,058,20! 1%
Home videc $ 42.€ $ 20.1 112%
Gross DVD units shippe 2,883,20! 1,868,401 54%
Other $ 05 $ 0.7 (29)%
Total $ 86.4 $ 53.¢ 60%
better
Cost of Revenues-Consumer Products 2006 2005 (worse)
Licensing $ 85 $ 6.4 (33)%
Magazine publishin 6.9 7.2 1%
Home videc 18.€ 9.2 (202)%
Other 0.4 0.5 20%
Total $ 344 % 23.2 (48)%
Profit contribution margit 60% 57%

Licensing revenues increased primarilg thua $4.2 million increase in the toy categorgt ar$4.1 million increase in the multimedia
game category. In fiscal 2006 damackDown vs. Raw 200#&leo game was released and sold approximatelynli®n gross units on the
PSP and PS2 platforms. Licensing revenues inckdd® million in music revenues in fiscal 2006 ampared to $0.8 million in fiscal 2005.
The increase in licensing cost of revenues, cangigtrimarily of talent royalties and agent comrioas paid to our licensing agents, reflects
the higher licensing revenues in fiscal 2006. tlent payout percentage varies as the mix of tgymsdaring products sold by our licensees
varies from period to period.

Magazine publishing revenues decreasieabpity due to a decline in the newsstand copiéa ofiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal
2005. Special magazines published in the prior yeduded a two-part retrospective surroundingtifstory ofWrestleMania

Home video revenues increased due td8R& increase in gross units sold combined withgor@aimate $3.70 increase in the per unit
sales price of DVDs. Fiscal 2006 included the reteaf several multi-disc titles includiMgrestleMania 21, Tombstone: The History of the
UndertakerandBret the Hitman Hart: The Best There Is...The Best@hVas...The Best There Ever Will Béso released in fiscal 2006 was
WrestleMania: The Complete Antholdgyx set, a 21 disc retrospective with a $279.9%9ested retail price and sets of iMeestleMania
Anthologybroken into five-year series. The increase in hoideo costs was primarily due to the increasedmwa of home video sales in
fiscal 2006, reflecting duplication and distributifees.
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The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Digital Media segitne

better

Revenue- Digital Media 2006 2005 (worse)
WWE.com $ 97 $ 7.8 24%
WWEShop $ 121 $ 4.5 16%
Average revenues per order (dolle $ 53.4: % 47.7¢ 12%
Other $ 11 $ 0.7 57%
Total $ 22¢ % 13.C 76%
better
Cost of Revenue-Digital Media 2006 2005 (worse)
WWE.com 52 $ 3.5 (49%
WWEShop 7.8 3.7 (111)%
Other 1.2 1.C (20)%
Total 14z $ 8.2 (73)%
Profit contribution margit 38% 37%

The increase in WWE.com revenues reflacé.5 million increase in advertising revenuesamspared to fiscal 2005. Also, revenues
associated with other internet based operatioefjding webcasts of pay-per-view events and suptori based content, increased by
approximately $0.4 million in fiscal 2006. The irase in WWE.com cost of sales is primarily dubigiher streaming related expenses, based
on a larger portion of our content being distriloltierough streaming videos.

The increase in WWEShop revenues reflagtapproximate 140% growth in the number of custoonders to approximately 226,000
orders in fiscal 2006. The additional revenuesegated in fiscal 2006 reflect an increase in therage order price by $5.64. The category
offerings were also increased to better appeaMiaar array of consumers and the sale of excludiVéEShop packages also contributed to
the increased revenues. The increase in WWEStsim€oevenues is directly correlated to the insecia orders processed in fiscal 2006,
reflecting an increase in the costs of materiatsfatfillment as compared to fiscal 2005.

The following chart reflects the amouaisl percent change of certain significant overtiesuls:

better
Selling, General & Administrative Expenses 2006 2005 (worse)
Staff relatec $ 447 $ 41.2 (8)%
Legal, accounting and other professic 10.€ 16.1 32%
Advertising and promotio 5.2 6.3 17%
Stock compensatic 4.7 4.1 (D%
Bad debt 0.5 0.7 29%
All other 25.¢€ 22.€ (15)%
Total SG&A $ 91.¢ $ 91.C (1)%

SG&A as a percentage of net reven 23% 25%

Staff related expenses increased, in gad to accrued employee incentive bonus payntleatsire linked to our achievement of certain
performance thresholds. Professional fees decrehsetb a reduction in the cost of Sarba@etey compliance and $2.1 million of net posit
legal settlements in fiscal 2006. Stock compensatikxpense primarily relates to the amortizationesfricted stock grants issued to employees
under our 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP").

better
2006 2005 (worse)

Depreciation and amortizatic $ 105 $ 11.¢ 12%

Depreciation and amortization expensdimet as the amount of capitalized property, prd equipment that became fully depreciated
in fiscal 2006 exceeded the depreciation associaibdcapital additions in fiscal 2005.
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better

2006 2005 (worse)
Investment incom 7.4 5.4 3%
The increase in investment income reflégher short term interest rates.
better
2006 2005 (worse)
Interest expens 0.€ 0.6 —
better
2006 2005 (worse)
Other income, ne 0.€ 1.3 (54)%
Provision for Income Tax 2006 2005
Provision 30.€ 18.€

Effective tax rate

The rise in the effective tax rate fachl 2006 was primarily due to realized capitaséssand an increase in state and local taxes.

409

addition, the effective tax rate in fiscal 2005 u@ser primarily due to the release of a valuatidlowance no longer necessary upon the
assignment of the lease Biie Worldto a third party and other state tax benefits.

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2005 comparetb Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2004 (dollars in nilions)

better

Net Revenues 2005 2004 (worse)
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 299t $ 308.¢ (3)%
Consumer Produc 53.¢ 54.7 (D%
Digital Media 13.C 11.4 14%
WWE Films — — —
Total $ 366.2 $ 374.¢ (2)%
better
Cost of Revenue! 2005 2004 (worse)
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 181.¢ $ 179.¢ (1)%
Consumer Produc 23.2 15.2 (53)%
Digital Media 8.2 12.1 32%
WWE Films — — —
Total $ 213 $ 207.1 (3)%
Profit contribution margit 42% 45%
better
Operating Income: 2005 2004 (worse)
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 100.¢ $ 106.5 (6)%
Consumer Produc 26.€ 34.c (22)%
Digital Media 1.2 (7.9 115%
WWE Films (1.0) (1.3 23%
Corporate (77.4) (58.0) (33%
Total operating incom $ 50.:2 $ 73.€ (32)%
Income from continuing operatiol $ 37.¢ $ 49.€ (24)%

In fiscal 2005, net revenues decreasedalower pay-per-view buys and advertising rewsnpartially offset by an increase in live
events revenues and television rights fees.
to 17% in fiscal 2004

In

Regefrom international sources represented 24%talf et revenue in fiscal 2005 as comp:



Operating income decreased due to loaxgrues and reduced profit margins in the LiveBeldvised Entertainment segment. In
addition, fiscal 2004 included two positive eveassociated with litigation. The Consumer Prodsetgment included a positive impact of $
million relating to the reversal of accrued licergstcommissions, while SG&A was reduced by a $58anibenefit for a legal settlement.

23



Additional details regarding these sumpnrasults follow below.

The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Live and Televigadertainment segment:

better

Revenues- Live and Televised Entertainment 2005 2004 (worse)

Live events $ 78.1 $ 69.7 13%
Number of North American even 27¢€ 297 (N%
Average North American attendar 4,25( 4,55( (N%
Average North American ticket price (dolla $ 38.61 $ 36.2¢ 7%
Number of international even 49 32 53%
Average international attendan 9,07( 9,27( (2)%
Average international ticket price (dolla $ 745: $ 64.5¢ 15%

Venue merchandis $ 12.¢ $ 12.7 1%
Domestic per capita spending (dollz $ 954 $ 8.9¢ 6%

Pay-pel-view $ 85.E $ 95.2 (10)%
Number of pa-pel-view events 14 12 17%
Number of buys from péepel-view events 5,280,80! 5,604,00! (6)%
Average revenue per buy (dolla $ 159 $ 17.1¢€ (M%
Domestic retail price, excludirWrestleManig(dollars) $ 349t 3 34.9¢ —

Advertising $ 43.7 $ 59.t (27)%
Sponsorship revenu $ 47 % 6.8 (31)%

Television rights fee
Domestic $ 532 $ 48.2 10%
International $ 24.¢ $ 22.¢ 9%

Other $ 08 $ 0.5 60%

Ratings
Average weekly household ratings for R 3.7 3.8 (3)%
Average weekly household ratings for SmackDc 3.2 3.3 (3)%

Total $ 299t 3 308.¢ (3)%

better

Cost of Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainment 2005 2004 (worse)

Live events $ 59.¢ $ 51.¢ (15)%

Venue merchandis 8.4 8.6 2%

Pay-pel-view 36.8 36.C (D%

Advertising 14.€ 22.k 35%

Television 53.¢ 50.€ (7%

Other 8.8 10.z 14%

Total $ 181.¢ % 179.¢ (1)%
Profit contribution margit 39% 42%

Live events revenue increased primarnig tb an increase in the average ticket price.h@lé 49 international events in fiscal 2005 as
compared to 32 events in fiscal 2004. Internalitioket prices averaged approximately $74.00,aaamared to an average North American
ticket price of approximately $39.00. The increbmskve events cost of revenues is attributabléhenincreased number of international events
in fiscal 2005.

Pay-per-view revenues decreased primdri/to a lower number of domestic pay-per-viewsbuglowever, our premier event,
WrestleMania 21 which was held in April 2005, achieved approxieia®983,000 buys as compared to approximately &kbtuys for
WrestleManiaxXX reported in fiscal 2004. In addition, the propoen of international buys, which carry a lowerga;j as compared to total buys
continued to increase during fiscal 2005.
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Advertising revenues decreased due todifination of our television distribution agreemavith UPN. In October 2003, UPN began
selling all advertising inventory for our SmackDotwroadcasts and paying us a rights fee. This geraent accounted for a decrease of
approximately $9.4 million in advertising revenudiscal 2005, partially offset by an increasedtevision rights fees of $7.1 million. This
arrangement also resulted in lower cost of reveanésyielded a higher profit margin.

The increase in the domestic rights feeiscal 2005 is derived from rights fee paidu®under our modified arrangement with UPN as
discussed above, partially offset by a $2.2 millimtrease in executive producer fees for a feditorestarring Superstar The Rock that did not
recur in fiscal 2005.

The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Consumer Produsgsrent:

better

Revenues- Consumer Product 2005 2004 (worse)
Licensing $ 20.¢ $ 21.¢ (4)%
Magazine publishin $ 122 $ 10.7 14%
Net units solc 4,058,20! 4,312,20! (6)%
Home videc $ 201 $ 21.4 (6)%
Gross DVD units shippe 1,868,401 1,520,201 23%
Other $ 07 $ 0.8 (13)%
Total $ 53¢ $ 54.7 (1)%
better
Cost of Revenue-Consumer Products 2005 2004 (worse)
Licensing $ 64 $ (2.0) (420)%
Magazine publishin 7.2 7.3 1%
Home videc 9.2 9.5 3%
Other 0.5 0.4 (25%
Total $ 235 % 15.2 53%
Profit contribution margit 57% 72%

Licensing costs in fiscal 2004 reflea tleversal of $7.9 million of previously accruezkhsing agent commissions. These costs hac
accrued over the period from fiscal 2001 throughdl 2004 and were reversed because payment waesger considered probable as a result
of favorable litigation developments. Excludingstheversal, licensing cost of revenues increageabiproximately $0.5 million primarily due
to a greater mix of royalty bearing revenue indis2005.

Magazine publishing revenues increasedanily due to the production of three additionpésial editions in fiscal 2005 as compared to
the prior year. Specials published in fiscal 20@%uded a two-part retrospective surrounding tiséony of WrestleManigand our annual
WWE Divas Swimsuit issue.

Home video revenues declined in parttduge lower price per unit as compared to fiscalf20this was partially offset by an increase of
approximately 0.2 million gross units sold. Sucéadttles released in fiscal 2005 includ&éte Rise & Fall of ECWiyhich chronicled the
history of Extreme Championship Wrestling, atard Knocks: The Chris Benoit Story.

The following chart provides performamesults and key drivers for our Digital Media segine

better

Revenue- Digital Media 2005 2004 (worse)
WWE.com $ 78 $ 5.6 39%
WWEShop $ 45 % 4.9 (8)%
Average revenues per order (dolle $ 47.7¢ % 42 .8¢ 11%
Other $ 07 $ 0.9 (22)%
Total $ 13.C $ 11.4 14%
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better

Cost of Revenues-Digital Media 2005 2004 (worse)

WWE.com 3t $ 3.2 (9)%

WWEShop 3.7 8.C 54%

Other 1.C 0.¢ (11)%

Total $ 82 $ 12.1 32%
Profit contribution margit 37% (6)%

Digital media revenue increased due ¢ihéi web advertising sales. This overall increeae offset by a decrease in WWEShop sales
reflecting a 19% decrease in the number of ordBestially offsetting the WWEShop decline was afolihcrease in the customer amount
spent per order.

During fiscal 2004 we recorded a predharge of $2.9 million in WWEShop cost of revenfarghe impairment of certain long-lived
assets of our e-commerce business. These assetprvearily composed of capitalized software depetent costs incurred during the set up
of the e-commerce section of our website. Exclgdims write-off, WWEShop cost of revenues decrddseapproximately 27% as a result of
reduced internet hosting costs associated witlopleeation of our website.

The following chart reflects the amouaitsl percent change of certain significant overtitesus:

better

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses 2005 2004 (worse)

Staff relatec $ 41z $ 42.5 3%
Legal, accounting and other professic 16.1 15.z (5)%
Settlement of litigation, ne — (5.9 NA
Advertising and promotio 6.3 6.8 7%
Stock Compensatic 4.1 3.7 (11)%
Bad debt 0.7 (2.3 (130%
All other 22.€ 217 (4%
Total SG&A $ 91.C $ 81.¢ (11)%
SG&A as a percentage of net reven 25% 22%

In fiscal 2004, we received a favoraklgdl settlement of approximately $5.9 million. ™3 million negative amount of bad debt
expense in fiscal 2004 was due to a payment redéreen a pay-per-view service provider that hadrbedly reserved in the prior year.

Stock compensation expense relates toestricted stock program. During 2004, we complete exchange offer that gave all active
employees and independent contractors who held sfotions with a grant price of $17.00 or higher #bility to exchange their options, at a 6
to 1 ratio, for restricted stock units. This excpemesulted in a total compensation charge of aqmiately $6.7 million, of which
approximately $2.0 million was recorded in fiscD2, approximately $3.6 million was recorded icéils2005 and approximately $1.1 million
was recorded in fiscal 2006. The remaining chafggproximately $0.5 million in fiscal 2005 reftsche amortization of restricted stock
grants issued to employees under our 1999 Long-Tecantive Plan (“LTIP”").

Also in 2004, we granted 178,000 restdcstock units at $9.60 per share. Such issuameesgranted to officers and employees under
our LTIP. Although originally scheduled to amoetiaver a seven year vesting period, an earningsttaras set such that if achieved during
vesting period, the unvested restricted stock wmitsld vest. Such target was met in respect o0afig004 and we recorded a $1.7 million
charge in fiscal 2004 for the immediate vestinghef remaining restricted stock units.

better
2005 2004 (worse)

Depreciation and amortizatic $ 11.¢ $ 12.4 4%

better
2005 2004 (worse)

Investment incom $ 54 $ 5.9 (8)%
The decrease in investment income retatesalized losses recognized with the sale dhoemvestments during fiscal 2005.
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better
2005 2004 (worse)

Interest expens $ 0.6 $ 0.8 25%
better
2005 2004 (worse)
Other income, ne $ 13 $ 1.3 —
Provision for Income Taxes 2005 2004
Provision $ 18.¢ $ 30.4
Effective tax rate 33% 38%

The decrease in the effective tax ratiiszal 2005 was primarily due to the release ealmation allowance no longer necessary upon the
assignment of the lease Biie Worldto a third party and other state tax benefits.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by operating actestfor the transition period ended December 316 201 the fiscal years ended April 30, 2006,
2005 and 2004 were $22.3 million, $67.3 millionedBLmillion and $61.9 million, respectively. Thedline in cash flows provided by
operating activities in the 2006 transition penieflects eight months of activity as compared telts® months of activity in fiscal 2006 and a
net increase in the amount of cash paid for fedibms and previously accrued expenses.

Cash flows provided by operating actastvary, in part, due to the timing of our prodoiesi for feature films. We have released two
feature films to date and have scheduled the dacrres¢ase of our third film for April 2007. Cafibws used for feature film production were
$17.5 million, $7.3 million, $28.3 million and $0mdillion for the 2006 transition period and thechsyears ended April 30, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The estimated cash to be usésdal 2007 for feature film production costsjgproximately $20 million. As of December
31, 2006, we have approximately $53.6 million ipitalized film production assets.

Working capital, consisting of currenseis less current liabilities, was $255.3 milli285.2 million and $278.1 million as of Decem
31, 2006, April 30, 2006 and April 30, 2005, regpesy.

Cash flows used in investing activities the transition period 2006 were $64.4 milliddash flows provided by investing activities for
fiscal years 2006 and 2005 were $84.9 million abh8.& million, respectively, and cash flows usethiresting activities were $111.0 million in
fiscal 2004. In the 2006 transition period we ased approximately $77.4 million of short termestments. As of February 23, 2007, we
approximately $162.5 million invested primarilyfired income mutual funds and municipal bonds. @uestment policy is designed to
preserve capital and minimize interest rate, crawaiit market risk.

Capital expenditures for fixed asset @ct§ were approximately $5.1 million, $9.4 millié&%.1 million and $5.3 million in transition
2006, fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. spent approximately $2.7 million, $0.9 million,.80nillion and $1.6 million on the
purchase of film library and other intangible assgettransition 2006, fiscal 2006, 2005 and 20@4pectively. Capital expenditures in fiscal
2006 included approximately $4.6 million for therghase of land adjacent to our television studhe $5.3 million in fiscal 2004 excluded
approximately $20.1 million to purchase an aircoafiease. Capital expenditures in 2007 are exddotbe between $20 million and $25
million, reflecting significant projects related television equipment, including the implementatidrinigh definition broadcasting. Additional
projects include wireless content delivery and sideanagement systems and building improvements.

Cash flows used in financing activities the 2006 transition period and the fiscal yesded April 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $46.8
million, $33.5 million, $24.2 million and $30.9 rdn, respectively. In the 2006 transition periag paid three dividends, of $0.24 per share
on all Class A and Class B common shares, for greggte amount of $51.0 million. In fiscal 200& paid four dividends, including two
dividends at a rate of $0.12 per share and twaldiwils at $0.24 per share on all Class A and ClassBnon shares, for an aggregate amount
of $50.1 million. This compares to dividends pafd$24.7 million in fiscal 2005 and $11.0 million fiscal 2004. In February 2007, the Board
of Directors authorized a quarterly dividend of2ZDper share on all Class A and Class B commorestihat is expected to be paid on or about
March 26, 2007. Assuming the same dividend ratesaock ownership, the estimated amount of divideonde paid for the upcoming fiscal
year is approximately $68.0 millio
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We believe that cash generated from diparsand from existing cash and short-term investisiwill be sufficient to meet our cash
needs over the next twelve months for working epéapital expenditures, feature film productiom ghe payment of dividends.

Contractual Obligations

In addition to long-term debt, we havéeead into various other contracts under which veeraquired to make guaranteed payments,
including:
. Various operating leases for office space and eqeiy.

. Employment contract with Vincent K. McMahon, whieims through October 2008, with annual renewalsetifter if not
terminated by us or Mr. McMahon, as well as a tatemtract with Mr. McMahon that is coterminouswitis employment
contract. Mr. McMahon is currently waiving all bfs compensation under theses agreements, execepsédary of $850,000 p
year beginning in 200’

. Employment contract with Linda E. McMahon, whicmsuthrough October 2007, with annual renewals #ftgeif not
terminated by us or Mrs. McMahon. Mrs. McMahonisrently waiving all of her compensation under gg®agreements, except
for a salary of $500,000 per year beginning in 2!

. Other employment contracts which are generallyofe-to thre«-year terms

. Service contracts with certain of our independemtii@ctors, including our talent, which are gerlgrar one-to four-year terms

Our aggregate minimum payment obligationder these contracts as of December 31, 2006masg the continued waiver of
compensation by Mr. and Mrs. McMahon, except ferdnnual salaries of $850,000 and $500,000, respBctnoted above, were as follows:

Payments due by perioc

12/31/07 2008 to 2010 2011 to 2012 After 2012 Total

($ in millions)

Long-term debt (including interest therec $ 13 $ 27 $ 27 % 17 $ 8.4

Operating lease 1.C 1.3 1.2 1.7 5.2

Talent, employment agreements and other commitr 16.1 12.C 5.2 12.5 45.¢

Total commitment: $ 184 $ 16.C $ 91 $ 15¢ % 59.4
Seasonality

Our operating results are not materiaffected by seasonal factors; however, our premient,WrestleManig historically occurred in
our fourth fiscal quarter. Due to our change $téil year end, beginning in calendar year 2080&stleManiawill typically occur late in our
first quarter or early in our second quarter. ddidon, revenues from our licensing and direcesdlconsumer products, including our catal
magazines and internet sites, may vary from pernqueriod depending on the volume and extent ehling agreements and marketing and
promotion programs entered into during any pardéicperiod of time, as well as the commercial susoéshe media exposure of our characters
and brand. The timing of these events as well asdmtinued introduction of new product offeringsl aevenue generating outlets can and will
cause fluctuation in quarterly revenues and easiing

Inflation
During transition 2006 and the past tHigeal years, inflation has not had a materiaéetfon our business.
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Application of Critical Accounting Policies
Accounting Policie!

We believe the following are the critiealcounting policies used in the preparation offmancial statements, as well as the significant
judgments and estimates affecting the applicatfdhese policies

. Revenue Recognition
Pay-per-view programming

Revenues from our pay-per-view programming arertismbwhen the event is aired and are based upoimitiat estimate of the number of
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based @limpinary buy information received from our pay—wew distributors. Final reconciliation of
the pay-per-view buys occurs within one year andsabsequent adjustments to the buys are recogoizedcash basis. As of December 31,
2006, our pay-per-view accounts receivable was@bd@llion. If our initial estimate is incorrect, éan result in significant adjustments to
revenues in subsequent years.

Sponsorships:

Through our sponsorship packages, we affgertisers a full range of our promotional véscincluding internet and print advertising,
arena signage and special appearances by our &uperg/e follow the guidance of Emerging IssueskTreorce (EITF) Issue 00-Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverabl, and assign the total sponsorship revenues tedatieus elements contained within a sponsorship
package based on their relative fair value. Olatixe fair values for the sponsorship elementsbased upon a combination of historical pr
and current advertising market conditions. Revdmma these packages is recognized as each elesngglivered. If we do not accurately
estimate the fair values of the various componehgponsorship packages, the timing of our incoemegnition would be impacted.
Sponsorship revenues totaled $0.5 million for tightemonths ended December 31, 2006.

Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home vidésstdre recorded when shipped by our distributevtiolesalers/ retailers, net of an allowanct
estimated returns. The allowance for estimatagmstis based on historical information and curiedtistry trends. As of December 31, 2006,
our home video returns allowance was $8.5 millitwe do not accurately predict returns, we mayeht adjust revenues in future periods.

Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are redosdten shipped by our distributor to wholesaletailers, net of an allowance for estimated
returns. We estimate the allowance for newsstahans based upon our review of historical retates and the expected performance of our
current titles in relation to prior issue returtesa As of December 31, 2006, our newsstand retalfawance was $4.1 million. If we do not
accurately predict returns, we may have to adgstmues in future periods.

. Feature films

We capitalize costs of production andugsition, including production overhead, as featiilre production assets. These costs will be
amortized to direct operating expenses in accoelanth Statement of Position 00AZcounting by Producers or Distributors of FilmEhe
costs for an individual film will be amortized apdrticipation and residual costs will be accruethaproportion that the current period’s
revenues bear to management’s estimates of timeatétirevenue from exploitation, exhibition or saflsuch film over a period not to exceed
ten years from the date of initial release. Managr@megularly reviews and revises, when necesganyltimate revenue and cost estimates,
which may result in a change in the rate of amatitin of film costs and/or writdewn of all or a portion of the unamortized codtthe film to
its estimated fair value. No assurance can be gha&nunfavorable changes to revenue and costastsmvill not occur, which may result in
significant write-downs affecting our results ofesgtions and financial condition. As of Decemb&yr 2006, we have approximately $53.6
million in capitalized film production costs.

We have performed an initial estimatewf ultimate revenue for our three completed pisj&ee No Evil, The MarinendThe
Condemned as well as the capitalized costs for variousdiimdevelopment, and believe no write-down is megliat this time.

. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our receivables represent a significamtipn of our current assets. We are requiredstomate the collectibility of our receivables am
establish allowances for the amount of receivathlaswe estimate to be uncollectible. We baseetlidlewances on our historical collection
experience, the length of time our receivablesoatstanding and the financial condition of indivadieustomers. Changes in the financial
condition of significant customers, either advessgositive, could impact the amount and timingaoy additional allowances that may be
required. As of December 31, 2006, our allowamcalbubtful accounts was $2.1 millic
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. Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordavitte the provisions of SFAS No. 108¢ccounting for Income TaxesAs such, we recognize
the future impact of the difference between thariirial statement and tax basis of assets andiie®il As of December 31, 2006, we have
million of net deferred tax assets on our balateets We record valuation allowances against teddax assets when management does not
believe the future tax benefits are more likelynthat to be realized. We also provide reserves wiebelieve that it is not probable that a tax
position taken by the Company will be sustainechdllenged.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Acconstandards Board (FASB) issued Statement of EiabAccounting Standards No. 197air
Value Measuremen{SFAS 157). SFAS 157 provides a common definitibfaim value and establishes a framework to makentieasurement
of fair value in generally accepted accounting giifes more consistent and comparable. SFAS 1%/ratplires expanded disclosures to
provide information about the extent to which faatue is used to measure assets and liabilitiesmthods and assumptions used to measure
fair value, and the effect of fair value measune®arnings. SFAS 157 is effective for us on Jan@aB008, although early adoption is
permitted. We are currently assessing the potesffiect of SFAS 157 on our financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFASD®, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities (SFAS 159).
SFAS 159 expands opportunities to use fair valuasmements in financial reporting and permits mstito choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair valBEAS 159 is effective for us on January 1, 20G8pagh we can chose to adopt it on January
1, 2007 if we also adopt SFAS 157 at that time. R&fee not decided if we will early adopt SFAS 15% eve will choose to measure any
eligible financial assets and liabilities at faalwe.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issuaff Bccounting Bulletin No. 108Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemevtien
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year FinanS&tementéSAB 108). SAB 108 was issued in order to elimirtheediversity in practice
surrounding how public companies quantify finansi@tement misstatements. SAB 108 requires thétragts quantify errors using both a
balance sheet and income statement approach algvahether either approach results in a mis$tateount that, when all relevant
guantitative and qualitative factors are considgi®chaterial. We implemented SAB 108 as of Decar3fie 2006. The adoption of SAB 108
did not have a material impact on our financialesteents.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Intetation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax&3N 48). FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a mimmpurobability threshold that a tax position musetrigefore a financial statement benefit is
recognized. The minimum threshold is defined in BBNas a tax position that is more likely thantedbe sustained upon examination by the
applicable taxing authority, including resolutiohamy related appeals or litigation processes, asethe technical merits of the position. The
tax benefit to be recognized is measured as tgesaamount of benefit that is estimated to betgrehan fifty percent likely of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. FIN 48 must be appliedlitexisting tax positions upon initial adoptidrhe cumulative effect of applying FIN 48 at
adoption, if any, is to be reported as an adjustrteeapening retained earnings for the year of dapFIN 48 is effective for us on January 1,
2007. We are currently assessing the potentiatetf FIN 48 on our financial statements, butiprglary analysis shows the effect to be
immaterial.

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Harbr” Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Refofet of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for certaiatetents that are forward-looking and are not
based on historical facts. When used in this TtemmsReport, the words “may,” “will,” “could,” “antipate,” “plan,” “continue,” “project,”
“intend”, “estimate”, “believe”, “expect” and singit expressions are intended to identify forwarckiog statements, although not all forward-
looking statements contain such words. These statesmelate to our future plans, objectives, exqienis and intentions and are not historical
facts and accordingly involve known and unknowRsiand uncertainties and other factors that magethe actual results or the performance
by us to be materially different from future reswt performance expressed or implied by such faii@oking statements. The following
factors, among others, could cause actual resuttffer materially from those contained in forwdabking statements made in this Transition
Report, in press releases and in oral statemende imaour authorized officers: (i) our failure t@imtain or renew key agreements could
adversely affect our ability to distribute our tékon and pay-per-view programming; (ii) our faiéuo continue to develop creative and
entertaining programs and events would likely lead decline in the popularity of our brand of etsimment; (iii) our failure to retain or
continue to recruit key performers could lead ttealine in the appeal of our storylines and theutemity of our brand of entertainment; (iv) 1
loss of the creative services of Vincent K. McMalwonild adversely affect our ability to create p@pwharacters and creative storylines; (v) a
decline in general economic conditions could adsgraffect our business; (vi) a decline in the gagty of our brand of sports
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entertainment, including as a result of changekersocial and political climate, could adversdfeet our business; (vii) changes in the
regulatory atmosphere and related private sectibatives could adversely affect our business;Ytiie markets in which we operate are highly
competitive, rapidly changing and increasingly freamted, and we may not be able to compete effégtigspecially against competitors with
greater financial resources or marketplace preséixgave face uncertainties associated with indional markets; (x) we may be prohibited
from promoting and conducting our live events if s@enot comply with applicable regulations; (xixchese we depend upon our intellectual
property rights, our inability to protect thoseltig, or our infringement of others’ intellectuabperty rights, could adversely affect our
business; (xii) we could incur substantial liall# if pending material litigation is resolved widaably; (xiii) our insurance may not be
adequate to cover liabilities resulting from acaideor injuries that occur during our physicallyrdeding events; (xiv) we will face a variety
of risks as we expand into new and complementasjnlesses such as feature films; (xv) through éigficial ownership of a substantial
majority of our Class B common stock, our contrallistockholder, Vincent K. McMahon, can exercisetaa over our affairs, and his intere
may conflict with the holders of our Class A comnsbock; (xvi) a substantial number of shares welldhigible for future sale by Mr.
McMahon, and the sale of those shares could lowesiock price; and (xvii) our Class A common stbels a relatively small public “float”.
The forwardlooking statements speak only as of the date effthénsition Report and undue reliance should aqilaced on these statemen

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuredout Market Risk

In the normal course of business, weeaposed to foreign currency exchange rate, intea¢stand equity price risks that could impact
our results of operations. Our foreign currencgh@nge rate risk is minimized by maintaining minimet assets and liabilities in currencies
other than our functional currency.

Interest Rate Ris

We are exposed to interest rate riskedl# our debt and investment portfolio. Our daibisists of the mortgage related to our corporate
headquarters, which has an annual interest rate686. The fair value of this debt is not signifidg different from its carrying amount.

Our investment portfolio consists prinhadf fixed income mutual funds and municipal aootrate securities with a strong emphasis
placed on preservation of capital. In an effonrti@mimize our exposure to interest rate risk, omestment portfolio’s dollar weighted duration
is less than one year. Due to the nature of owestments and our strategy to minimize market atetést rate risk, we believe that our
portfolio would not be materially impacted by adsefluctuations in interest rates.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary B

The information required by this iters@t forth in the Consolidated Financial Statemélgd with this report.
Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourteaon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None
Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

We have performed an evaluation undesthpervision and with the participation of our mgeraent, including our Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer oktleffectiveness of our disclosure controls andgutaces, as defined under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluationmamagement, including our Chairman, Chief Exeeu@¥ficer, and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls pratedures were effective as of December 31, 20@®s$ure that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports filed or submittgdib under the Exchange Act is recorded, processeadmarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.ré&leere no significant changes in our disclosurgrods and procedures during the last fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reably likely to materially affect, our internal dool over financial reporting.

31



Management’s Report on Internal ControM@r Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for esthinlg and maintaining adequate internal control éimancial reporting, as such term is defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Urttle supervision and with the participation of omanagement, including our Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officeve conducted an evaluation of the effectivermégsir internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on theeling$ established imternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisg@@dSO). Our internal control over financial refrogtincludes policies and procedures
that provide reasonable assurance regarding tiaditid} of financial reporting and the preparatiohfinancial statements for external report
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accegatedunting principles.

Based on the results of our evaluatiam,moanagement concluded that our internal contref financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2006. We reviewed the results of mamagt’'s assessment with our Audit Committee.

Management’s assessment of the effeads®nf our internal control over financial repagtes of December 31, 2006 has been audited
by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registgrablic accounting firm, as stated in their repohich is included in this Transition Report
on Form 10-K. Such report expresses unqualifiediops on management’s assessment and on the effieesis of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 3106.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, Connecticut

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodied accompanyiniglanagement’s Report on Internal Control Over Finiahc
Reporting, that World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. and sdiasies (the “Company”) maintained effective imtal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on @itsiablished imternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commissitime Company’s management is responsible for taiaing effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessmeinhefeffectiveness of internal control over finahcgporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinitimeceffectiveness of the Company’s internal adrdver financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightrifiq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audiluded obtaining an understanding of internal cdraver financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluatirg#ign and operating effectiveness of internatrobrand performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the cdtanoes. We believe that our audit provides eorestdle basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons pemfiorg similar functions, and effected by the compaipard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneedieg the reliability of financial reporting anltkt preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles. A company’s interr@tcol over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheataintenance of records that, in reasonableldataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactioneereded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gengmaadcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxédsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of the company’s assleat could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the positl of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltorover financial reporting to future periods ateject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditibtigt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that tingp@oy maintained effective internal control oveiaficial reporting as of December 31,
2006, is fairly stated, in all material respectssdd on the criteria establishedriternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd®ommission. Also in our opinion, the Companyntaned, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting of December 31, 2006 based on the criteriblediad ininternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement sdeeafithe Company as of and for the year ended mbee 31, 2006 and our report dated
February 28, 2007 expressed an unqualified opiaiothose consolidated financial statements ancdhilahstatement schedule.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 28, 2007
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

The information required by Part Il ite 10-14) is incorporated herein by reference todefinitive proxy statement for our 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedsl

(a) The following documents are filed as a pathig report:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Sdae8ee index to Consolidated Financial Statemamisage F-1 of this Report.

2. Exhibits:

Exhibit
No.

Description of Exhibit

3.1

3.1A

3.2

3.2A

10.1

10.1A

10.1B

10.2

10.2A

10.2B

10.3

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatinaafporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Regtion Statement
on Form &1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate adrporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibli(d) to oul
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed July 15, 2002

Amended and Restated -laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Registration Statement on Fori-1 (No.
33:-84327)).

Amendment to Amended and Restated By-Laws (incatpdrby reference to Exhibit 4.2(a) to our RegigtraStatement
on Form &8, filed July 15, 2002

1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by meriee to Exhibit 10.1 to our Registration StatenwanEorm St (No.
333-84327)) (the“LTIP").*

Form of Option Agreement under the LTIP (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.1A to our Annual Reépm Form 1-
K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units grdrdaring 2003 under the LTIP (incorporated by refiee to Exhibi
10.2B to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003

Employment Agreement with Vincent K. McMahon, da@ctober 14, 1999 (incorporated by reference taitkikh0.2 to
our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33-84327)).*

Amendment, dated as of May 1, 2002, to EmploymegreAment with Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated bference t
Exhibit 10.2A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

Amendment, dated June 23, 2006, to Employment Ageaé¢ with Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated by refece tc
Exhibit 10.2B to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 20, 2006)

Booking Contract with Vincent K. McMahon, dated Fedry 15, 2000 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi3 to our
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000
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10.3A

10.4

10.4A

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Amendment, dated July 3, 2001, to Booking Contwath Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated by referertoeExhibit
10.3A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2001

Employment Agreement with Linda E. McMahon dateddber 14, 1999 ((incorporated by reference to BxAi.3 to
our Registration Statement on Fori-1 (No. 33:-84327)).*

Amendment, dated June 23, 2006, to Employment Agee¢ with Linda E. McMahon (incorporated by refereno
Exhibit 10.4A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006

Booking Contract with Linda E. McMahon, dated Febigul5, 2000 (incorporated by reference to ExHibib to oul
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000

World Wrestling Entertainment Employee Stock PusehBlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.6ur Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. Management BoRlan (incorporated by reference to Appendix ghProxy
Statement for the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockhiddéled July 31, 2003).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 3012069 and between Invemed Catalyst Fund, L.P. anddWVrestling
Entertainment, Inc. (incorporated by referencesbikit 10.10 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe fiscal year
ended April 30, 2002

Open End Mortgage Deed, Assignment of Rents andrgégreement between TSI Realty Company and GM
Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to CiticorplBestate, Inc.), dated as of December 12, 199b(parated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to our Registration &tant on Form -1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Promissory Note issued by TSI Realty Company to @M2ommercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to CiticogalREstate
Inc.), dated as of December 12, 1997 (incorporbtexkference to Exhibit 10.12 to our Registratieat&ment on Form S-
1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Environmental Indemnity Agreement among TSI Re@&npany, Titan Sports Inc. and GMAC Commercial Idage
Corp. (assigned to Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.)edats of December 12, 1997 (incorporated by reéerém Exhibit 10.13
to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Assignment of Leases and Rents between TSI Realtyp@ny and GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned
Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.), dated as of DecemBed @97 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1add.dur Registration
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Agreement between WWF-World Wide Fund for Naturd &itan Sports, Inc. dated January 20, 1994 (inm@ated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to our Registration &tant on Form -1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Offer letter, dated May 10, 2005, between the Camgaand Michael Sileck (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.7 tc
our Current Report on Forn-K filed May 19, 2005).*

Offer letter, dated March 4, 2004, between the Camyand John Laurinaitis (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.17%
to our Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005)

Offer letter, dated July 1, 2003, between the Comgaand Thomas Barreca (incorporated by referen&hibit 10.18 to
our Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005

Employment Agreement with Joel Simon, dated as ay [0, 2005 (incorporated by reference to ExhiBitLlof our
Current Report on Forrr-K, filed November 11, 2005).
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10.18
211
23.1
311
31.2
31.3
32.1

Employment Agreement with Frank G. Serpe, datedc @, 2007 (filed herewith).

List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filed herewit

Certification by Vincent K. McMahon pursuant to 8en 302 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith
Certification by Linda E. McMahon pursuant to SentB02 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith
Certification by Frank G. Serpe pursuant to Sec808 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

Certification by Vincent K. McMahon, Linda E. McMah, and Frank G. Serpe pursuant to Section 90&dfahexley
Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @iarrangemen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the SéesiExchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has dalysed this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized.

W ORLD W RESTLING E NTERTAINMENT, | NC.
(Registrant
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Joseph Perkins

/s/ M ICHAEL B. SOLOMON Director March 2, 2003

Michael B. Solomon

/s/ ROBERTA. B owMAN Director March 2, 2007

Robert A. Bowman

37



WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm F-2
Consolidated Income Statements for the eight mpatiod ended December 31, 2006 and the years émutdB0, 2006, April
30, 2005 and April 30, 20C F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 30, 2006 and April 30, 20C F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity @athprehensive Income for the eight month periatedrDecember 31,
2006 and the years ended April 30, 2006, AprilZm5 and April 30, 200 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ergitith period ended December 31, 2006 and the pealesd April 30, 200¢
April 30, 2005 and April 30, 200 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-7
Schedule I~ Valuation and Qualifying Accoun F-26



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Ina anbsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2006, April 30, 2006 and April 30, 208nd the related consolidated statements of ieggtockholders’ equity and
comprehensive income and of cash flows for thetaiginth period ended December 31, 2006, and eatttedhree years in the period ended
April 30, 2006. Our audits also included the fio@h statement schedule listed in the Index at It&m These financial statements and finar
statement schedule are the responsibility of th@@my’s management. Our responsibility is to egpian opinion on the financial statements
and financial statement schedule based on oursaudit

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlaUnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, orsali@sis, evidence supporting the amounts andodisids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thiataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, tinaficial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2006, April 30, 2006 and April 30, 208nd the results of its operations and its chsisffor the eight month period ended
December 31, 2006 and each of the three year®ipdtiod ended April 30, 2006, in conformity wittcaunting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Also, in our apim such financial statement schedule, when censdlin relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presentg,fai all material respects, the information &&th therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the effectivenes:
the Company’s internal control over financial repay as of December 31, 2006, based on the crigstiablished itnternal Control—
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatigrise Treadway Commission and our report datduiuzey 28,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on manageémassessment of the effectiveness of the Compamtgmal control over financial
reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effesmtiess of the Company’s internal control over foialhreporting.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 28, 2007
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

(dollars and shares in thousands, except per sladag

Net revenue

Cost of revenue

Selling, general and administrative exper
Depreciation and amortizatic

Operating incom
Investment income, n
Interest expens

Other income, ne

Income before income tax
Provision for income taxe

Income from continuing operatiol

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, netwfexpense (benefit) «
$23, $737 and $(722) for 2006, 2005 and 2004, ciedy

Net income

Earnings per shar- Basic:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Net income

Earnings per shar Diluted:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Net income

Shares used in per share calculatit
Basic
Diluted

For the 8 months

For the years ended

ended
December 31, April 30, April 30, April 30
2006 2006 2005 2004
$ 262,93 $ 400,05 $ 366,43: $ 374,90¢
157,09: 227,17. 213,28¢ 207,12:
61,04: 91,86 90,97¢ 81,84¢
5,551 10,47: 11,87¢ 12,36:
39,24: 70,54( 50,29: 73,58(
6,44( 7,39( 5,367 5,90¢
421 587 64z 767
884 55& 1,34¢ 1,27¢
46,14¢ 77,89¢ 56,35¢ 79,99
14,52¢ 30,88¢ 18,58: 30,42
31,617 47,01: 37,77¢ 49,57
— 35 1,36¢ (1,38)
$ 31,617 $ 47,047 $ 39,147 $ 48,19:
$ 04t $ 0.6¢ $ 05t $ 0.72
0.0C 0.0C 0.0z (0.02)
$ 04t $ 0.6¢ $ 057 $ 0.7¢
$ 04 $ 067 $ 05¢ $ 0.72
0.0C 0.0C 0.0z (0.02)
$ 04 $ 067 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.7¢
70,89¢ 69,36! 68,617 68,62
71,59¢ 70,17¢ 69,37¢ 69,03¢

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financategtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel

Shor-term investment

Accounts receivable, n

Inventory, ne

Prepaid expenses and other current a

Assets of discontinued operatic

Total current asse

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NE
FEATURE FILM PRODUCTION ASSET:
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Deferred incomu
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol

Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY:

Class A common stock: ($.01 par value; 180,0004)0es authorized; 23,283,916 and
22,843,435 and 21,167,092 shares issued as of eceh, 2006, April 30, 2006 a

2005, respectively

Class B common stock: ($.01 par value; 60,000,0@0es authorized; 47,713,563 sh
issued as of December 31, 2006, April 30, 20062415, respectively

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It
Retained earning

Total stockholder equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

As of:

December 31 April 30, April 30,

2006 2006 2005
$ 86,267 $ 175,200 $ 56,56¢
161,88¢ 105,65! 201,48’
52,11: 67,77¢ 61,90:
3,04¢ 1,78¢ 1,057
13,33¢ 11,14( 15,19
46¢ 457 544
317,12: 362,01¢ 336,74
67,97 67,57( 66,63¢
53,56( 36,09¢ 28,77:
3,32¢ 1,461 2,60¢
11,30¢ 12,247 6,64(
$ 45328' $ 479,39( $ 441,40
$ 86z $ 817 $ 75€
14,90¢ 19,82¢ 15,66¢
25,53¢ 36,017 21,15
20,16¢ 19,87¢ 20,84:
30z 294 254
61,77¢ 76,82¢ 58,67
5,80( 6,381 7,19¢
23: 22¢ 21z
477 477 477
286,98! 277,69: 254,71¢
66€ 35¢ (90¢€)
97,35( 117,42° 121,03
385,71 396,18: 375,53
$ 45328! $ 479,39( $ 441,40

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeStents.
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Balance, May 1, 200!
Comprehensive incom
Net income
Translation adjustmel
Unrealized holding loss,
net of tax

Total comprehensive incon

Retirement of treasury sto

Stock issuances (repurchases),

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit from exercise of sto
options

Dividends paic

Dividends declared, not yet pe

Stock compensation cos

Balance, April 30, 2004

Comprehensive incom

Net income

Translation adjustmel

Unrealized holding loss,
net of tax

Reclassification
adjustment for losses
realized in net incom
net of tax

Total comprehensive incon

Stock issuances (repurchases),

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit from exercise of sto
options

Dividends paic

Stock compensation cos

Balance, April 30, 200%

Comprehensive incom

Net income

Translation adjustmel

Unrealized holding loss,
net of tax

Reclassification
adjustment for losses
realized in net incom
net of tax

Total comprehensive incon

Stock issuances (repurchases),

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefit from exercise of sto
options

Dividends paic

Stock compensation cos

Balance, April 30, 2006

Comprehensive incom

Net income

Translation adjustmel

Unrealized holding loss,
net of tax

Reclassification
adjustment for losses
realized in net incom
net of tax

Total comprehensive incon
Stock issuances (repurchases),

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND

Common Stock

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(dollars and shares in thousands)

Accumulated

Treasury Stock Additional Other
Paid - in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income Earnings Total

72,99¢ $ 73C 257¢ $ (30,569 $ 297,31 $ 243 69,63 $ 337,35¢
_ _ _ — = — 48,19: 48,19:
— — — — — (209) — (203
—_ — — — — (1,160 — (1,160
46,82¢

(4,616 (46) (4,616 49,71: (49,666 — — —
27 — 2,03¢ (19,149 5 — — (19,139

24 — — — 30& — — 305
— — — — 2 — — 2
_ — — — — — (10,959 (10,959
_ _ — = — — (4,10¢) (4,10¢6)
— — — — 2,81« — — 2,814
68,43: 684 — — 250,77! (1,120 102,76t 353,10!
_ _ _ _ —_ — 39,147 39,147
— — — — — 932 — 932
— — — — — (1,369 — (1,364
— — — — — 644 — 644
39,35¢
37€ 4 — — (1,195 — — (1,199
74 1 — — 704 — — 70&

— — — — 81 — — 81
— — — — 267 — (20,87¢) (20,609
— — — — 4,08¢ — — 4,084
68,88: 68¢ — — 254,71t (908) 121,03 375,53¢
— — — — — — 47,047 47,047
— — — — — 1,32( — 1,32(
— — — — — (1,185 — (1,185
— — — — — 1,12¢ — 1,12¢
48,31(
284 3 — — (814) — — (811)
1,392 14 — — 16,80¢ — — 16,82:
— — — — 1,69¢ — — 1,69¢
— — — — 592 — (50,657 (50,069
— — — — 4,694 — — 4,69¢
70,557 70€ — — 277,69: 35E 117,42 396,18:
— — — — — — 31,617 31,611
— — — — — 46€ — 46€
— — — — — (220 — (220)
— — — — — 65 — 65
31,92¢
14z 1 — — (61€) — — (615)



Exercise of stock optior 29¢ 3 — — 3,67¢ — — 3,67¢
Excess tax benefits from stock

based payment arrangeme — — — — 71z — — 712
Dividends paic — — — — 677 — (51,69 (51,01)
Stock compensation cos — — — — 4,84% — — 4,847
Balance, December 31, 20C 70,99¢ $ 71C — — 3 286,98! $ 66€ $ 97,35( $ 385,71:

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financategtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating

activities:
(Income) loss from discontinued operations, netg
Depreciation and amortizatic
Realized losses on sales of investmi
Amortization of investment incon
Stock compensation cos
Unrealized gain on revaluation of warra
Provision for doubtful accoun
Provision for inventory obsolescen
Provision (benefit) for deferred income ta
Impairment of lon-lived asse
Excess tax benefits from st-based payment arrangeme
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other as
Feature film production asse
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Deferred incomu

Net cash provided by continuing operatit

Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued opena

Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipm
Purchase of corporate aircr
Purchase of other ass:
Purchases of sh-term investment
Proceeds from sales or maturities of s-term investment

Net cash (used in) / provided by continuing operst

Net cash used in discontinued operati

Net cash (used in) / provided by /investing adt@i

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of lor-term debt
Stock issuance (repurchase),
Dividends paic
Net proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme

Net cash used in continuing operatit
Net cash provided by discontinued operati

Net cash used in financing activiti

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOI

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOI

For the 8 months

For the years ended

ended
December 31, April 30, April 30, April 30,
2006 2006 2005 2004
$ 31,617 $ 47,047 $ 39,147 $ 48,19:
— (35) (1,36¢) 1,381
5,557 10,47: 11,87¢ 12,36:
10E 1,82( 1,03¢ —
(329) (1,702 (424) (1,052
4,84: 4,69¢ 4,08¢ 2,81¢
(839) (1,479 (714) (671)
(1,579 494 65E (2,295)
1,42¢ 1,89¢ 1,54¢ 237
2,44% (1,667) 1,19(C 5,08
— — — 2,947
(712) — — —
17,23; (6,36¢) 38t (11,33)
(2,689 (2,625) (1,749 (255)
(2,769 (2,65¢) 51¢ 3,301
(17,466 (7,329 (28,34() (431)
(4,917 4,15¢ 2,55: (1,070
(10,279 20,84¢ (5,902) 7,917
621 (47¢) (2,176 (1,737
22,28¢ 67,102 22,32( 65,39:
— 162 (5,830 (3,477
22,28¢ 67,26¢ 16,49( 61,91
(5,09¢) (9,376) (5,06() (5,26¢€)
— — — (20,129
(2,726 (881) (195) (1,647
(77,436 (53,76Y) (61,477 (238,019
20,85( 148,90¢ 82,55: 154,05:
(64,417 84,88¢ 15,82; (110,99)
(64,417 84,88t 15,827 (110,99;)
(537) (757) (700) (1,248
35C 483 49¢€ (19,03))
(51,01Y) (50,064 (24,716 (10,95¢)
3,67¢ 16,82 704 30t
71z — — —
(46,819 (33,515 (24,216 (30,929
(46,819 (33,519 (24,216 (30,929
(88,93¢) 118,63! 8,101 (80,006
175,20 56,56¢ 48,46 128,47
$ 86,267 $ 175,200 $ 56,56¢ $ 48,46



SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for income taxes, ne¢foids $ 19,53: $ 19,06( $ 17,46¢ $ 14,01¢
Cash paid during the year for inter $ 421 $ 587 $ 64z $ T7%

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzsg d

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated finandiiesnents include the accounts of World WrestlingeEainment, Inc., and our subsidiaries.
We are an integrated media and entertainment copnpaincipally engaged in the development, productind marketing of television and
pay-per-view event programming and live eventstaedicensing and sale of consumer products feajwiur World Wrestling Entertainment
brands. Our operations are organized around foncipal activities:

Live and Televised Entertainment

. Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te kwents, sales of merchandise at these live guvetgsision rights fee:
sales of advertising and sponsorships and feegdwaing our pa-pel-view and video on demand programmi

Consumer Products

. Revenues consist principally of royalties from proid sold by licensees (such as video games, fayb@oks), sales «
WWE produced home videos and magazine publisl

Digital Media
. Revenues consist of advertising sales on our weshsitle of merchandise on our website througMBWEShop internet
storefront and the sale of broadband and mobiléetb:
WWE Films
. Consists of the production and distribution of fldhentertainment featuring our Superstars. Althaughfeature films

were released in the 2006 transition period, nemees have been recorded to date as we do natijpaidi in revenues
until the print and advertising costs incurred by distributors have been recouped and the relsalts been reported to
us.

All significant intercompany transacticasd balances have been eliminated. Certain peiar gmounts have been reclassified to con
to the current year presentation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in comiity with accounting principles generally accepie the United
States requires our management to make estimatessaomptions that affect the reported amountssdta and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitancial statements and the reported amounesvehue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those esties.

Fiscal Period— Our fiscal year historically ended on April 80each year. Unless otherwise noted, all referebhzgears relate to
fiscal years, not calendar years, and refer tdisical period by using the year in which the fispatiod ends. Our fiscal quarters were thirteen-
week periods that ended on the thirteenth Fridagi@nquarter, with the exception of our fourth gegrwhich always ended on April 30. In
June 2006, the Board of Directors elected to chaugéiscal year to a calendar basis beginning wélendar 2007. This change is intended to
simplify communication with shareholders and wilbéle the reporting of our financial results innagframe consistent with the majority of
our media and entertainment peers. We therefoablkestied an eight month transition period from May006 through December 31, 2006.
This period is referred to herein as “transitio®&0or “T 2006".

Cash and Equivalents Cash and equivalents include cash on deposiénnight deposit accounts and investments in ypomerket
accounts.

Short-term Investments We classify all of our short-term investmentsa@ailable-for-sale securities. Such short-terestments
consist primarily of mutual funds and of municipale auction securities, which are stated at falwe, with unrealized gains and losses on
securities reflected, net of tax, as other comprsive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. Resdigiains and losses on short-term
investments are included in earnings and are d&tiging the specific identification method for detaing the cost of securities sold. It is our
intent to maintain a liquid portfolio to take adtage of investment opportunities; therefore, alusities are considered to be available-for-sale
and are classified as current ass



Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable relate principally to amisutue to us from pay-petew providers and television netwol
for pay-per-view presentations and television paagming, respectively, and balances due from treecdfdhome videos and magazines. Our
receivables represent a significant portion of@urent assets. We are required to estimate ttectibility of our
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzsg d

receivables and to establish allowances for theustnaf receivables that we estimate to be uncaliectWe base these allowances on our
historical collection experience, the length ofdiour receivables are outstanding and the finawoiadiition of individual customers. Trade
receivables are charged off when considered uratidle. Activity in the allowance for doubtful aasats is as follows:

Balance at Charged to Balance at

beginning costs and Write-offs and end of

of period expenses other period
Transition 200¢ $ 3,74C $ (1,579 $ 82 % 2,08¢
2006 $ 32871 $ 494 3 41 $ 3,74(C
2005 $ 261z $ 67t $ — 3 3,28
2004 $ 528 $ (2,299 $ (377 $  2,61:

Inventory— Inventory consists of merchandise sold on edfisales basis, and videotapes and DVDs, whichadethrough wholesale
distributors and retailers. Substantially all of mventory is comprised of finished goods. Inventis stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-
out basis) or market. The valuation of our inveig®requires management to make market estimatessisg the quantities and the prices at
which we believe the inventory can be sold.

Feature Films— Feature films are initially recorded at thetoafsproduction, including production overhead. $S&eosts for an
individual film will be amortized in the proportidhat revenues bear to management’s estimateg afitimate revenue expected to be
recognized from exploitation, exhibition or salesath film. Management regularly reviews and resjisehen necessary, its ultimate revenue
and cost estimates, which may result in a changfeeimate of amortization of film costs and/or wiitown of all or a portion of the unamortiz
costs of the film or television program to its psdted fair value.

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are stated at histociost less accumulated depreciation and amortizatio
Depreciation and amortization are computed onagdtt-line basis over the estimated useful livethefassets or, when applicable, the life of
the lease, whichever is shorter. Vehicles and eneig are depreciated based on estimated usefalNaging from three to five years.
Buildings and related improvements are deprecibgesd on estimated useful lives varying from fivéhirty-nine years. Our corporate aircraft
is depreciated over ten years on a straight-lirsisdass an estimated residual value of $9,50a8nrield major maintenance activities related to
the corporate aircraft are capitalized and amattiaeer five years, which is the estimated periotil tile next overhaul.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying amounloofg-lived assets when events and circumstances
warrant such a review. During fiscal 2004, managreinperformed an analysis on our long-lived asstéded to our e-commerce
infrastructure. These assets were primarily coragad capitalized software development costs irzliduring the set up of the e-commerce
section of our website. Based upon the performahoar e-commerce business at the time of thalyaiseas compared to the costs incurred to
operate the site, management determined that ffe¢ wss impaired and recorded a pre-tax charg@,6f3 in cost of revenues.

Income Taxes- We account for income taxes in accordance withptogisions of Statement of Financial Accountingrigtards (SFAS
No. 109,Accounting for Income TaxesOur deferred provision was determined unde®et and liability method. Under this method, tax
deferred assets and liabilities are recognizeddasalifferences between the financial statemedtiacome tax basis of assets and liabilities
using presently enacted tax rates. Valuation allmes are established to reduce deferred tax asset®ounts management believes are more
likely than not to be realized. We consider estadduture taxable income and ongoing tax plansinategies in assessing the need for
valuation allowances. We also provide reserveswhe believe that it is not probable that a taxtmoswe have taken will be sustained if
challenged.

Revenue Recognitien Revenues are generally recognized when productshgwped or as services are performed. Howevertalthe
nature of several of our business lines, theraddéitional steps in the revenue recognition procassiescribed below.

» Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-per-view prograngnare recorded when the event is aired and arelhgsm our initial estimate of the number
of buys achieved. This initial estimate is basegeeliminary buy information received from our pgagrview distributors. Final reconciliatic
of the pay-per-view buys generally occurs withire grear and any subsequent adjustments to the belys@gnized on a cash basis.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzsg d

» Television advertising:

Revenues from the sale of television atitiag are recorded when the commercial airs withir programming and are based upon
contractual amounts previously established withamlwertisers. These contractual amounts are tjpicased on the advertisement reaching a
desired number of viewers.

e Sponsorships:

Through our sponsorship packages, we affgertisers a full range of our promotional véscincluding internet and print advertising,
arena signage, omir announcements and special appearances by parsars. We follow the guidance of Emerging Isshigsk Force (EITF
Issue 00-2Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverahlaad assign the total sponsorship revenues teatieus elements contained
within a sponsorship package based on their reldtiir values. Our relative fair values for th@sgorship elements are based upon a
combination of historical prices and current adgery market conditions. Revenue from these pagkagrecognized as each element is
delivered.

e Licensing:

Licensing revenues are recognized upoaipe of notice by the individual licensees asid¢ernse fees due. If we receive licensing
advances, such payments are deferred and recogaszedome as earned.

¢ Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home vidésstére recorded when shipped by our distributevtiolesalers/retailers, net of an allowance for
estimated returns. The allowance for estimatedmstis based on historical information and curiedustry trends.

* Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are redordien the magazine is shipped, net of an allowéorcestimated returns. We estimate the
allowance for newsstand returns based upon ouewesf historical returns rates and the expectetbpeance of our current titles in relation
prior issue return rates.

Advertising Expense Advertising costs are expensed as incurreceor costs related to the development of a maganmercial or
media campaign which are expensed in the periethinh the commercial or campaign is first presented

Foreign Currency Translatier For translation of the financial statementewf Canadian and United Kingdom subsidiaries, weha
determined that the Canadian Dollar and the U.Kindlprespectively, are the functional currenciesseis and liabilities are translated at the
yea-end exchange rate, and income statement accawntisaaslated at average exchange rates for the Jea resulting translation
adjustments are recorded in accumulated other amepsive income, a component of stockholders’ ggldreign currency transactions are
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at thesaetion date.

Stock-Based Compensatien In the fiscal years ended April 30, 2006, 2@08 2004 we accounted for stock options issued to
employees using the intrinsic value method as piteset under Accounting Principles Board Opinion 2& Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employeey, (APB 25) and related interpretations. Under thethod, no compensation expense was recognized tvberumber of shares
granted is known and the exercise price of theksbgption is equal to or greater than the marketepaf our stock on the grant date. Stock
options issued to non-employees were accounteda fiair value at the issuance date. We followeddisclosure-only provisions of SFAS No.
148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Tramséitd Disclosure and SFAS No. 123ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation
SFAS Nos. 148 and 123 encouraged, but did not regeompanies to adopt a fair value based methodei@rmining expense related to stock-
based compensation.
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The following table provides relevantdrhation as to reported results for the fiscal gearded April 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 unde!
intrinsic value method of accounting for stock op8 with supplemental information as if the failuearecognition provisions of SFAS No. 1
had been applied:

2006 2005 2004
Reported income from continuing operatic $ 4701 $ 37,77¢ $  49,57¢
Add: Stocl-based employee compensation expense includedantegldncome fron

continuing operations, net of related tax effe 2,91( 2,54 2,27¢
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresgdetermined under fair value bas

method for all awards, net of related tax effe (3,74)) (4,12%) (4,392)
Pro forma income from continuing operatic $ 46,18. $ 36,19¢ $ 47,45¢
Reported basic earnings from continuing operatf|rscommon shat $ 0.6¢ $ 05t % 0.72
Pro forma basic earnings from continuing operatjpgrscommon shai $ 067 $ 05 % 0.6¢
Reported diluted earnings from continuing operaipar common sha $ 067 $ 052 % 0.7z
Pro forma diluted earnings from continuing opemagiper common sha $ 0.6e $ 05z % 0.6¢

We adopted SFAS No 123(Bhare-Based Paymef8FAS 123(R)), which revises SFAS 123 and supesA&d 25, on May 1, 2006.
SFAS 123(R) requires that new, modified and unvkestare-based payment transactions with emplogeeh,as stock options and restricted
stock, be recognized in the financial statemenseth@n their fair value and recognized as compEmsakpense over the vesting period. We
adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospectieghod. Under this transition method, compensatast recognized in the current period
includes amounts of: (a) compensation cost oftelte based awards granted to employees prior tayrimested as of, May 1, 2006, based on
grant date fair value estimated in accordance thighoriginal provisions of SFAS 123, and (b) comgagion cost for all stock based awards
granted subsequent to May 1, 2006, based on tim date fair value estimated in accordance withnigae provisions of SFAS 123(R). In
accordance with the modified prospective methaosljlte for prior periods have not been restateee (Sote 14)

For all periods presented, restrictedlstmit grants are recorded at fair value as ofttamt date, with the resulting compensation cost
recorded over the vesting period.

Derivative InstrumentsWe hold warrants received from certain publichded companies with whom we have licensing oridigion
agreements. Warrants received from our licensegsdelevision programming distributor were iniji@ecorded at their estimated fair value
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes ogtiicing model. That amount was recorded as dederevenue and is amortized into
operating income over the life of the related agrests using straight-line amortization. For transi?006 and fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, we
recorded revenues of $329, $493, $493 and $1,Gf2ctvely, related to the amortization of defemexgenue resulting from the receipt of s
warrants. Subsequent to receipt, the warrantadjtessted to their estimated fair value each quantigh changes in fair value included in other
income.

Intangible Assets- Our intangible assets consist of the cost ofied film libraries which are amortized over thggars and acquired
trademarks and trade names which are amortizedtbre® to six years. To the extent capitalized,iotangible assets are being amortized
their estimated useful lives based on the periedaisets are expected to contribute to our caals flsVe perform impairment tests annually
and whenever events or circumstances indicatartteatgible assets might be impaired.

Earnings Per SharéNe present both basic and diluted earnings peeqERS) amounts. Basic EPS is calculated by digidet incom
by the weighted average number of common sharesaputing during the year. Diluted EPS is based upenveighted average number of
common and common equivalent shares outstandinggltite year which is calculated using the treastiogk method (see Note 4). Common
equivalent shares are excluded from the computatiperiods in which they have an anti-dilutiveeeff. Stock options for which the exercise
price exceeds the average market price over thecpare anti-dilutive and, accordingly, are exclddieom the calculation.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In September 2006, the Financial Acconstandards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. Faft, Value Measurement{SFAS 157).
SFAS 157 provides a common definition of fair vaduel establishes a framework to make the measuteshair value in generally accepted
accounting principles more consistent and compar&fAS 157 also requires expanded disclosureotide information about the extent to
which fair value is used to measure assets antlitied the methods and assumptions used to medairrvalue, and the effect of fair value
measures on earnings. SFAS 157 is effective fanu¥anuary 1, 2008, although early adoption is figgdh We are currently assessing the
potential effect of SFAS 157 on our financial staéats.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFASD®, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities (SFAS 159).
SFAS 159 expands opportunities to use fair valuasmements in financial reporting and permits mstito choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair valBEAS 159 is effective for us on January 1, 20G8pagh we can chose to adopt it on January
1, 2007 if we also adopt SFAS 157 at that time. R&fee not decided if we will early adopt SFAS 15% eve will choose to measure any
eligible financial assets and liabilities at faalwe.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issuaff Bccounting Bulletin No. 108Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemevtien
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year FinanS&tementéSAB 108). SAB 108 was issued in order to elimirtheediversity in practice
surrounding how public companies quantify finansi@tement misstatements. SAB 108 requires thégtragts quantify errors using both a
balance sheet and income statement approach ah&verhether either approach results in a misstateount that, when all relevant
guantitative and qualitative factors are considgi®chaterial. We implemented SAB 108 on Decemle2806. The adoption of SAB 108 did
not have a material impact on our financial stateisie

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Intetation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax&3N 48). FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a mimmpurobability threshold that a tax position musetrigefore a financial statement benefit is
recognized. The minimum threshold is defined in BBNas a tax position that is more likely thantedbe sustained upon examination by the
applicable taxing authority, including resolutiohamy related appeals or litigation processes, asethe technical merits of the position. The
tax benefit to be recognized is measured as tgesaamount of benefit that is estimated to betgrehan fifty percent likely of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. FIN 48 must be appliedlitexisting tax positions upon initial adoptidrhe cumulative effect of applying FIN 48 at
adoption, if any, is to be reported as an adjustrteeapening retained earnings for the year of dapFIN 48 is effective for us on January 1,
2007. We are currently assessing the potentiateffieFIN 48 on our financial statements, but pnétiary analysis shows the effect to be
immaterial.

3. Fiscal Year Change

Effective December 31, 2006, we changediscal year end from April 30 to December 3theTable below summarizes selected
financial data for the eight months ended Decertie2006 and December 31, 2005.

Eight Months Ended Eight Months Ended
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

(unaudited)

Net revenue $ 262,93 $ 247,70"
Operating incomi $ 39,24 $ 44,17
Provision for income taxe $ 14,52¢ $ 18,87¢
Income from continuing operatiol $ 31,617 $ 29,78
Net income $ 31,617 $ 29,817
Earnings per shar Diluted:

Net income $ 044 $ 0.4<
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4. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic andted earnings per share, we used the following hte@javerage common shares outstanding:

T 2006 2006 2005 2004
Basic 70,898,62 69,360,85 68,617,36 68,621,14
Diluted 71,596,23 70,175,85 69,376,28 69,035,63
Dilutive effect of outstanding optior 289,44 170,18¢ 120,86¢ 86,21¢
Dilutive effect of restricted stock uni 406,48: 644,81: 638,05( 328,27:
Dilutive effect of employee share purchase | 1,68¢ — — —
Anti-dilutive outstanding options, end of peri 277,00( 306,20( 2,785,001 2,025,12!

5. Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets consist principaflacquired wrestling based film libraries, tradeks and trade names. The cost of film libraries
acquired during transition 2006, fiscal 2006, 2@@8 2004 was approximately $1,678, $881, $195 andl®, respectively. The cost of
trademarks and trade names acquired during tran2006 and fiscal 2005 was $1,048 and $160 respéct We did not purchase any
trademarks and trade names in fiscal 2006 or fa@@#. Our intangible assets consisted of thevetig:

December 31, 2006

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $ 730¢ $ (5,07) $ 2,227
Trademarks and trade narn 3,70¢ (2,607 1,101
$ 11,012 $ (7,689 $ 3,32¢
April 30, 2006
Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $ 5,62¢ $ (4,579 $ 1,052
Trademarks and trade nar 2,66( (2,25)) 40¢
$ 828 $ (6,825 $ 1,461
April 30, 2005
Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $ 4748 $ (2999 ¢ 1,752
Trademarks and trade narn 2,66( (1,809 85¢€
$ 7408 $  (4,79) $  2,60¢

Amortization expense recorded for traosi2006 and fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $83928, $2,079 and $1,843, respectively.
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The following table presents estimatetdrfel amortization expense:

For the year ending December 31, 2! $ 1,32¢
For the year ending December 31, 2 1,20¢
For the year ending December 31, 2 79€
Total $ 3,32¢

6. Investments

Short-term investments consisted of tileing:

December 31, 200!

Unrealized
Holding
Amortized Gain Fair
Cost (Loss) Value
Fixed income mutual funds and ott $ 8999 $ (3,10) $ 86,88¢
Municipal auction rate securitit 75,00( — 75,00(
Total $ 16499 $ (3,10) $ 161,88

The unrealized holding loss of $3,10Datember 31, 2006 consisted of gross losses 088&dd gains of $87.

April 30, 2006
Unrealized
Holding

Amortized Gain Fair

Cost (Loss) Value
Fixed income mutual funds and ott $ 90,65¢ $ (2,84 $ 87,81
United States Treasury Not 17,85( (6) 17,84«
Total $ 10850¢ $ (2,859 $ 105,65!

The unrealized holding loss of $2,85Aatil 30, 2006 consisted of gross losses of $2&0d gains of $53.

April 30, 2005
Unrealized
Holding

Amortized Gain Fair

Cost (Loss) Value
Fixed income mutual funds and ott $ 158,317 $ (2,677) $ 155,64(
United States Treasury Not 45,94t (98) 45,84
Total $ 204,26: $ (2,77 $ 201,48

The unrealized holding loss of $2,773atil 30, 2005 consisted of gross losses of $2&&d gains of $6.

Management deems investments to be iegaihen a decline in fair value is judged to beepthan-temporary. If the cost of an
investment exceeds its fair value, we evaluate repother factors, general market conditions, thatilon and extent to which the fair value is
less than cost, as well as the intent and abdityald the investment. As of December 31, 200thaa: $89,867 of fixed income mutual fund
a continuous unrealized loss position for twelventhe or greater. The unrealized loss is due togbsin interest rates subsequent tc



purchase of the investment. Management does nievbehat any unrealized losses represent other#raporary impairment based on our
evaluation of available evidence as of DecembefB@6.

In addition to the short-term investmetteéscribed above, we also hold warrants which weived from certain publicly traded
companies with whom we have licensing or distributagreements. The estimated fair value of thegeants, determined using the Black-
Scholes model, was $5,336, $4,497, and $3,023 Beagmber 31, 2006, April 30, 2006 and April 30020respectively, and is included in
other non current assets. We recognized mark teehadjustments of $839, $1,474, $714, and $6Tihgdransition 2006, fiscal 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively, relating to these warramitéch is included in other income.
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7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of ttlewing:

December 31 April 30, April 30,

2006 2006 2005
Land, buildings and improvemer $ 56,08¢ $ 55957 $ 51,95¢
Equipment 45,75: 44,78¢ 42,511
Corporate aircral 20,82¢ 20,71( 20,71(
Vehicles 634 51¢ 542
123,29¢ 121,97: 115,72:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (55,32)) (54,409 (49,089
Total $ 67,97 $ 67,57( $ 66,63¢

In fiscal 2006 we purchased land adjatewour television production studio for approxielgt$4,589. Depreciation expense was $4.
$8,444, $9,795 and $10,520 in transition 2006afi2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

8. Feature Film Production Assets

Feature film production assets are suriradras follows:

December 31 April 30, April 30,
2006 2006 2005

Feature film production:
In release $ 34,10 $ — % —
Completed but not releas 18,55¢ 33,74 —
In production — 1,70z 28,29¢
In developmen 89¢ 64¢ 47E
Total $ 53,56( $ 36,09 $ 28,77

Two of our feature film&ee No EvibndThe Marine were released domestically during transition 2086e No Eviachieved more the
$15,000 in gross domestic box office receipts and meleased domestically on DVD in November, 200ie Marine which was theatrically
released in the domestic market on October 13, 2t@6achieved more than $18,800 in gross domastioffice receipts to date and was
released domestically on DVD in January, 2007. Biud feature film,The Condemnedis in the post-production phase of completion.
Currently, The Condemneid scheduled for release in domestic markets inl 2007. We have agreements for the worldwideritistion of
these films and certain related rights and prodWfs do not participate in any revenues associatddthese film projects until the print and
advertising costs incurred by our distributors hbgen recouped and the results have been rep@téddus. Accordingly, no revenues have
been recorded in transition 2006.

We estimate that approximately 35% ofrétease” film production assets will be amortipe@r the next twelve months. Approximately
70% of “In release” film production assets areraated to be amortized over the following three geBue to the timing of the releaseTdfe
Marine, we estimate that approximately 80% of “In relédim production assets will be amortized over fo#owing four years.

Unamortized feature film production assate evaluated for indications of impairment eagorting period. If the estimated revenue is
not sufficient to recover the unamortized asset abset will be written down to fair value. As cdd@mber 31, 2006, we do not believe any
capitalized assets for the three films includeteature film production assets are impaired.

In addition to the capitalized productosts related for these three films, we have edgitalized certain script development costs for
various other film projects. Capitalized script dpment costs are reviewed periodically for impaint if, and when, a project is deemed t
abandoned. Approximately $0, $197, $158 and $428eaviously capitalized development costs wereeased for abandoned projects in
transition 2006, fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, rethpely.
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9. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilitiesststed of the following:

December 31 April 30, April 30,
2006 2006 2005
Accrued pa-per-view event cost $ 522¢ $ 7500 $ 5,691
Accrued income taxe — 7,41¢ —
Accrued payroll related cos 5,40: 9,17¢ 5,931
Accrued legal and professional fe 2,051 3,254 2,601
Accrued home video production and distribut 5,14« 3,121 2,01z
Accrued othe 7,70¢ 5,54¢ 4,91¢
Total $ 2553t $ 36,017 $ 21,15]

The decrease in accrued pay-per-viewsasbecember 31, 2006 is due to the timing offiseal 2006Backlashevent, which occurred
on April 30, 2006, the last day of the fiscal y2806. The decrease in accrued payroll related éostue to a lower accrued amount for bonus
payments, which are linked to our achievement abae performance thresholds. The decrease iruaddegal and profession fees reflect an
overall reduction in legal and accounting costsgaeover period. The increase in accrued homeovteduction and distribution costs is due
to higher talent royalties accrued related to heideo sales. Accrued other includes accruals opoiblishing, television, and licensing
business activities, none of which exceeds 5% ok liabilities.

10. Debt

In 1997, we entered into a mortgage lgmeement under which we borrowed $12,000 at anadmmterest rate of 7.6% with a maturity
date of December 31, 2013. Principal and intenesstabe paid in 180 monthly installments of apjmately $112. The loan is collateralized
our executive offices and television studio in Stauth, Connecticut.

As of December 31, 2006 the scheduleacjal repayments under our mortgage obligatiorevesrfollows:

For the year ending December 31, 2! $ 862
For the year ending December 31, 2 927
For the year ending December 31, 2 1,00z
For the year ending December 31, 2! 1,08z
For the year ending December 31, 2! 1,16¢
Thereaftel 1,62(
Total $ 6,662

11. Income Taxes

For transition 2006, fiscal 2006, 2008 2004 we were taxed on our income from continaipgrations at an effective tax rate of 31.
39.6%, 33.0% and 38.0%, respectively. Our incaameptovision related to our income from continuogerations for transition 2006, fiscal
2006, 2005 and 2004 was $14,529, $30,884, $18,58%20,421, respectively, and included federatesiad foreign taxes.

The components of our tax provision froomtinuing operations were as follows:

T 2006 2006 2005 2004
Current:
Federal $ 11,51¢ $ 2259 $ 10,44: $ 19,54
State and loce 27¢€ 7,23z 1,62: 3,13:
Foreign 29t 2,71¢ 5,32t 2,64
Deferred:
Federal 2,167 (2,139 2,18:¢ 4,50:

State and loce 27¢ 47¢ (999) 62C



Foreign — — — (18)

Total $ 14,52¢ $ 30,88: $ 18,58 $ 30,42:
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The income tax provision allocated totamring operations and discontinued operations agafllows:

Provision for income taxe- continuing operation $
Provision (benefit) for income tax- discontinued operatior

Total allocated provision for income tax $

Components of income before income taxesas follows:

U.S. $
International subsidiarie

T 2006 2006 2005 2004
14,52¢ $ 30,88 1858: $ 30,42
— 23 737 (722)
14,52¢ $ 30,907 19,31 $  29,69¢
T 2006 2006 2005 2004
4580. $ 77,35 54,87¢ $ 78,88
34F 53¢ 1,481 1,11
46,14¢ $ 77,89 56,35¢ $ 79,99/

Income before income tax $

The following sets forth the differencetleen the provision for income taxes from contigupperations computed at the U.S. federal

statutory income tax rate of 35% and that repditedinancial statement purposes:

T 2006 2006 2005 2004
Statutory U.S. federal tax at 3t $ 16,15( $ 27,26 19,72¢ $ 27,99¢
State and local taxes, net of federal ber 87¢€ 5,012 1,21¢ 2,43¢
Foreign rate differentie 142 157 181 261
Tax exempt interest incon (1,529 (1,20%) (1,707 —

Valuation allowanct 11 292 (1,002) (162)
Other (1,126 (63E5) 15¢ (115)
Provision for income taxe $ 14,52¢ $ 30,88 18,58 $ 30,42:

The tax effects of temporary differentiest give rise to significant portions of the deéelr tax assets and deferred tax liabilities of

continuing operations consisted of the following:

Deferred tax asset

Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid royaltie

Stock options/stock compensati

Credits and net operating loss carryforwe
Investment:

Intangible assel

Accrued liabilities and reservi

Foreign

Deferred tax assets, grc
Valuation allowanct

Deferred tax assets, r
Deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets and depreciat
Accrued liabilities and reserv

December 31, April 30, April 30,
2006 2006 2005

$ 764 $ 1,36z 1,207
2,17¢ 1,367 86¢
4,27( 3,92¢ 3,88¢
2,50¢ 737 2,731

— 2,46¢ —
2,84t 3,97( 3,94¢
3,262 3,171 2,44
— 73C 1,301
— — 65
15,82( 17,73: 16,45:
(1,799 (1,789 (1,496)
14,02 15,94: 14,95¢
(5,032) 5,011 5,52¢

(274)




Total deferred tax assets, | $ 8,71t $ 10,93 $ 9,43:
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The temporary differences described abbepeesent differences between the tax basis efses liabilities and amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements that will reguliaxable or deductible amounts in future yeargmvthe reported amounts of the assets or
liabilities are recovered or settled. As of Decentie 2006, April 30, 2006 and April 30, 2005 $418%5,467 and $5,815 respectively, of the
net deferred tax assets are included in prepaidresgs and other current assets and the remainjdg33%5,465 and $3,617 respectively, are
included in other non-current assets in our codatdid balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2006, April 30, 2086d April 30, 2005 we had valuation allowances b799, $1,788 and $1,496, respectively, to
reduce our deferred tax assets to an amount nialg than not to be recovered. The valuation alloegais primarily related to the deferred tax
asset arising from losses on investments whicleapéal in nature for which realization is uncemtaihese Capital loss carryforwards begin to
expire in 2007.

We are subject to periodic audits of wanious tax returns by government agencies whiectdcesult in possible tax liabilities. Althou
the outcome of these matters cannot currently ermiéned, we do not believe that amounts, if anlyictv may be required to be paid by rea
of such audits will have a material effect on doafcial statements. We have recorded accrualsfdain probable tax contingencies related
to various tax matters as of December 31, 2006.

U.S. income taxes have not been provatednremitted earnings of our foreign subsidiafdiegause our intent is to keep such earnings
indefinitely reinvested in the foreign operatiorigh®e subsidiaries.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, includingos non-cancelable operating leases, performenctacts with various performers and
employment agreements with certain executive affice

Future minimum payments as of Decembe2806 under the agreements described above wéodamss:

Operating
Lease Other
Commitments Commitments Total
For the year ending December 31, 2 $ 994 $ 17,40 $ 18,397
For the year ending December 31, 2 692 7,79i 8,48¢
For the year ending December 31, 2! 634 6,86( 7,49¢
For the year ending December 31, 2 607 4,55k 5,16
For the year ending December 31, 2! 56E 3,34: 3,90¢
Thereaftel 1,72¢ 14,20¢ 15,92¢
Total $ 521¢ $ 54,16: $ 59,37¢

Rent expense under operating leasesdadlin continuing operations was approximately 63,%2,460, $2,231 and $1,906 for trans|
20086, fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Legal Proceeding:
World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for tdee and its American affiliate, the World Wildlifeund (collectively, the “Fund”) instituted
legal proceedings against us in the English Highr€seeking injunctive relief and unspecified daesfpr alleged breaches of a 1994
agreement between the Fund and us regarding thef tise initials “wwf”. In August 2001, a High Cauudge granted the Fund’s motion for
summary judgment, holding that we breached theesmgeat by using the initials “wwf” in connection Wwitertain of our website addresses and
our former scratch logo. The English Court of Agpeésequently upheld that ruling. Since Novemlier2002, we have been subject to an
injunction barring us, either on our own or throwglr officers, servants, agents, subsidiariesniees or sublicensees, our television or other
affiliates or otherwise, from most uses of theiast “wwf,” including in connection with the “wwfivebsite addresses and the use of our formel
scratch logo.
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As part of its original complaint, therielincluded a damages claim associated with ouofie initials “wwf.” On October 29, 2004,
the Fund filed a claim for damages in the EnglisghHCourt. In this filing, the Fund seeks actuaihthges for legal and other costs of
approximately $575, which we have provided for, &mther asserts substantial monetary claims iaranount calculated as a royalty based
percentage of profits from certain of our reventeasns, otherwise referred to as restitutionaryatges, over the period January 1997 through
November 2002. On January 6, 2005, we filed aficgipn to determine as a preliminary issue theppety of the Fun’s basis upon which
damages have been claimed. After a hearing rgl&ithis preliminary issue, in January 16, 2006junlgment dated February 16, 2006, the
Court ruled that the Fund is entitled in pointafvlto seek restitutionary damages, but that thetqurewhether the Fund is entitled in point of
fact to claim or recover damages on that basis iresia be determined, and we have appealed thisidec The Fund was ordered to provide
further clarification of its claim by March 2, 2006

The Fund made such a filing with the Gollowever, we believe that this alleged clarificatdid not comply with the Court’s February
16, 2006 order. In response to our applicationJume 26, 2006, the Fund was ordered to providaduclarification of its damages claim. ~
Fund made such further filing on July 21, 2006.

All proceedings are stayed pending thteaue of our appeal of the court’s February 16,620@dgment that the Fund is entitled in point
of law to seek restitutionary damages. A hearimghis appeal occurred in December 2006.

We strongly dispute that the Fund hdfesed any loss or damage, and do not believetkiggt are entitled to restitutionary damages.
believe that we have strong defenses to the Fumti&rranted monetary claims and will vigorouslyedef against them. We cannot quantify
the potential impact that an unfavorable outcomtihefdamages claim could have on our financial itmmg results of operations or liquidity;
however, based on the Fund’s assertions, it coallchéterial.

Shenker & Associates; THQ/Jakks.

On November 14, 2000, Stanley Shenkers&akiates, Inc. (“SSAI") filed a complaint againstin Superior Court, Judicial District of
Stamford/Norwalk, Connecticut, relating to the taration of an agency agreement between us andtiffiaiRlaintiff sought compensatory
damages and punitive damages in an unspecified rrattorneys’ fees, an accounting and a declargtioigment. In October 2003, as a
result of misconduct by the plaintiff, includingv@giig perjured testimony and fabricating evidenbe, ¢ourt issued a comprehensive opinion
order, dismissing plaintiff's case against us wgthjudice and entering a default judgment in ounfan all of our counterclaims for tortious
interference with business relations, conversicayd and conspiracy.

We also filed a complaint against Jamel, Bne of our former officers (“Bell”), and ceimeentities related to him, with respect to
irregularities in the licensing program during teésure with us, which came to light as a resutfisovery in the Shenker litigation. That
lawsuit was consolidated with the Shenker litigatidVe filed a motion for summary judgment on dlbar claims against Bell, which was
granted on August 17, 2004. On February 10, 2B@8,pleaded guilty in United States District Cofot the District of Connecticut to mail
fraud resulting from kickbacks from Stanley ShenK&henker”) and SSAI based on the royalties defifrem certain WWE licensing
agreements. On August 10, 2005, we entered iptotéal settlement with Bell pursuant to which vwgeed to settle our state law claim for the
payment of $2,500. Our federal claims were speadiff excluded from this settlement.

On June 6, 2006, Shenker was indictedenUnited States District Court for the Distri¢t@onnecticut, and on September 7, 2006 a
Superseding Indictment was issued, in connectiah &fenker's conspiracy with Bell to: (a) enriblemselves by obtaining monies relating to
WWE and its licensees to which they were not exdijt(b) affirmatively conceal their acts from WW(Edrder to continue to receive and retain
monies to which they were not entitled; (c) dephiV®VE of honest services, by compromising employpgalty and integrity through their
secret arrangement to split between themselvedtyag@mmissions monies paid from WWE licensees; @)do provide false and misleading
information to WWE during civil litigation to obtaiadditional anticipated economic benefits and ddiégorgement of their ill-gotten gains.
On January 12, 2007, Shenker pled guilty to Cour 6f the Superseding Indictment for conspiracgoimmit interstate transportation of
money obtained by fraud and wire fraud.

On October 19, 2004, as a result of imfamtion uncovered in connection with the Shenkerssdciates matter, we filed an action in the
U.S. District Court for the Southern District of We¥ork against Jakks Pacific, Inc. (“Jakks”), twardign subsidiaries of Jakks, THQ Inc.
(THQ"), THQ/Jakks Pacific LLC (“THQ/Jakks”), SSAhd Bell Licensing, LLC. The suit also names asddants certain individuals
employed by the corporate defendants, includingetlsenior executives of Jakks, Shenker and Bell.

Our lawsuit alleges violations of the Reteer Influenced and Corrupt Organization Act (B)@nd the anti-bribery provisions of the
Robinson-Patman Act, and various claims under taste The original complaint sought treble, purétand other damages and a declaration
that the existing videogame license with THQ/Jadkd a related amendment to the toy licenses wiksJare void and unenforceable. On
March 31, 2005, we filed an amended complaint whéchong other things, added an antitrust claim utiteSherman Act.
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By letter dated March 1, 2004, Jakks iedehat the filing of the lawsuit breached a awar not to sue contained in a January 15, 2004
settlement agreement (the “settlement agreemegil)ing to an audit we conducted concerning Jakdikire to report certain sales and claim
of unsupported deductions. Jakks further asséntgdunder an indemnification provision in the sy 15, 2004 settlement agreement, it
intended to seek indemnification from us for lossgrneys fees and costs incurred in connection with thweslgt as well as various securit
class actions filed against Jakks arising out efshme allegations. We deny any breach of thiesetht agreement and intend to vigorously
defend any asserted claims in that regard.

In an order dated March 31, 2006, ther€ql) denied the defendants’ motions to dismigsRICO claim based on their enterprise
argument; (2) granted the defendants’ motionssmis the Robinson-Patman Act claim; and (3) grhtite defendantshotions to dismiss tt
Sherman Act claim. We timely filed a motion focoasideration of the court’s dismissal of the SharAct claim, which remains pending
before the Court. The defendants’ motions to disnall remaining RICO issues were briefed by théeBaants’ on June 2, 2006, and our
response in opposition to those motions to dismis filed on July 7, 2006. We also filed a motiorstrike and response in opposition to the
motion to dismiss filed by the Jakks and its &dfiid parties only based on the alleged applicglufithe settlement agreement. Oral argument
was held on September 6, 2006.

On October 13, 2006, we filed a complairthe Superior Court of the State of Connectagainst THQ and THQ/Jakks arising out of
the improper sublicense of rights to certain WWEHAgled videogames in violation of the applicableesghme license agreement. The
complaint alleges claims for, among other thingeabh of contract, unjust enrichment, violationthef Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act
and a declaration that we are entitled to termitfagevideogame license agreement with THQ/Jakks.

Jakks has been our toy licensee sineell@®5 and operates under current licenses thaedxptheir terms in 2009. THQ/Jakks obtai
a videogame license from us in 1998, which licdege expire in 2009, subject to a right by THQK&lo extend the license for an additional
five years. During the pendency of this litigatieve intend to continue to fulfill our obligatiomsder the current licenses and expect Jakks ant
THQ to do likewise.

IPO Class Actior

In December 2001, a purported class aa@nplaint was filed against us asserting claionsafleged violations of the federal securities
laws relating to our initial public offering in 199Also named as defendants in this suit were \finse McMahon, Linda E. McMahon and
August J. Liguori, a former Chief Financial Officgollectively, the “Individual Defendantsgnd the underwriters of our initial public offerii
According to the allegations of the Complaint, tirelerwriter defendants allegedly engaged in maatjua practices by, among other things,
pre-selling allotments of shares of our stock tume for undisclosed, excessive commissions froenpifrchasers and/or entering into after-
market tie-in arrangements which allegedly art#ilyi inflated the Company’s stock price. The ptdiriurther alleges that we knew or should
have known of such unlawful practices. This litiga has been consolidated in the United StatesiBti€ourt for the Southern District of N¢
York (“SDNY™") with claims against approximately 3@bher companies that had initial public offerimysing the same general time period.

While we strongly deny all allegationtse ttlass plaintiffs and the issuer defendantsudioh the Individual Defendants and the
company, reached an agreement for the settlemeitd&ims. On February 15, 2005, the court issaie opinion and order granting
preliminary approval of the settlement, subjeateéaain non-material modifications. The court halgettlement fairness meeting on April 24,
2006 following which it took under advisement thetian for final approval of the settlement. In Betber 2006, the Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit ruled that the certification of thi®ceeding as a class action was invalid and rdetathe case to the SDNY. The class
plaintiffs have requested the Second Circuit tonsader. We are unable to predict whether the IS &ircuit’s decision will stand, the
likelihood that the settlement will go forward aadivhether the plaintiff's will seek to amend thelaims, if necessary, in accordance with the
Second Circuit’s ruling.

Other Matters

We are not currently a party to any otheterial legal proceedings. However, we are inedlin several other suits and claims in the
ordinary course of business, the outcome of wtsatoi expected to have a material adverse effeotiofinancial condition, results of
operations or liquidity. We may from time to tirnecome a party to other legal proceedings.
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13. Stockholders’ Equity

Our Class B common stock is fully conil@etinto Class A common stock, on a one for orgidyat any time at the option of the holder.
The two classes are entitled to equal per shaidatids and distributions and vote together asssaldth each share of Class B entitled to ten
votes and each share of Class A entitled to onge, eaxicept when separate class voting is requiraabplicable law. If, at any time, any shares
of Class B common stock are beneficially owned oy person other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahamy descendant of either of
them, any entity which is wholly owned and is cotlied by any combination of such persons or angtirall the beneficiaries of which are any
combination of such persons, each of those shaliesutomatically convert into shares of Class Araoon stock. Through his beneficial
ownership of a substantial majority of our ClassdBhmon stock, our controlling stockholder, VinchtdMahon, can effectively exercise
control over our affairs, and his interests cowddftict with the holders of our Class A common $toc

Recent Equity Transactions

In July 2006, we granted 507,750 restdcttock units at a price per share of $16.50.h &suances were granted to officers and
employees under our 1999 Long-Term Incentive PLANR). Total compensation cost related to the grdrihe restricted stock units, based on
the estimated value of the units on the grant datg7,708 and is being amortized over the vegtergpd, which is three years.

In July, September, and December 200@aie quarterly dividends of $0.24 per share, or,$34, $17,025 and $17,038 respectively, on
all Class A and Class B common shares.

14. Share Based Compensation

The LTIP provides for grants of optiomslather forms of equity-based incentive awarddedsrmined by the compensation committee
of the Board of Directors as incentives and rew&odmsncourage employees, directors, consultantparfdrmers to participate in our lotgrm
success. The LTIP provides for grants of opti@ngurchase shares at a price equal to the fairehagtue on the date of grant. The options
expire between 5-10 years after the date of gnashtaae generally exercisable in installments bagmone year from the date of the grant. In
2004, we began issuing restricted stock units, ivgenerally vest annually. Current grants outstaptave vesting periods between three and
seven years. As of December 31, 2006 there w6880 shares available for future grants. dispolicy to issue new shares to satisfy
option exercises and the vesting of restrictedkstmits.

Stock based compensation cost was appedgly $4,843, $4,694, $4,084 and $3,674 for ttemsR006 and fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The total recognized tax benefit #5501, $1,878, $1,353 and $1,396 for transitiddc2and fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

SFAS 123(R) also amends SFAS No.S&tement of Cash Flowsequiring the benefits of tax deductions in esocafsrecognized
compensation costs to be reported as financing ftash, rather than as operating cash flows asipusly required. The tax benefits in excess
of recognized compensation cost for transition 28@6e $712.

Stock Options

The fair value of stock options was dati@ed using the Black-Scholes valuation model. Stahe is recognized as expense over the
service period, net of estimated forfeitures, ushwgstraight line method under SFAS 123(R). Weeh@ot granted any stock options since
June 2004. We granted 1,104,500 and 852,500 optidiscal 2005 and 2004 respectively. The per shegighted average fair value of stock
options granted in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 $295 and $2.44, respectively.

The weighted average assumptions us#tkinption-pricing model in fiscal 2005 was asdols:

2005 2004
Expected life of optiol 3 year 3 year

Risk-free interest rat 3.C% 1.8%
Expected volatility of our common sto 33% 38%
Expected dividend yiel 1.9% 1.7%
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We did not recognize stock compensatimst for stock options prior to the adoption of SFEXE3(R) on May 1, 2006. See Note 2 for
forma net income disclosures for fiscal 2006, 2808 2004.

The following table summarizes the effeicadopting SFAS 123(R) on the reported amountsrémsition 2006 relative to amounts that
would have been reported using the intrinsic vahe¢hod under previous accounting:

Eight months ended
December 31, 2006

Intrinsic

Value SFAS 123(R) As
Method Adjustments Reported
Operating incom $ 39,34¢ $ (10€) $ 39,24:
Net income $ 31,68: $ (66) $ 31,617
Net income per basic common shz $ 0.4t $ 0.0C $ 0.4t
Net income per diluted common she $ 044 $ 0.0C $ 0.44
The following table summarizes optionitt for the transition period.
Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at of May 1, 20( 2,023,90! $ 13.1C — —
Granted — — — —
Exercisec (298,85) $ 12.31 — —
Forfeited/Expirec (9,75) $ 12.8¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,715,300 $ 13.14 31 $ 561
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 1,671,94 $ 13.13% 31 $ 543
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 1,280,891 $ 13.47 34 % 3,81z

As of December 31, 2006, the total futmenpensation cost related to unvested optiongetatecognized was $0.5 and the weighted
average period over which these awards are exp&xtesrecognized was 0.4 years. We estimate forés, based on historical trends, when
recognizing compensation expense associated vaith siptions, and will adjust our estimate of fodiegs when they are expected to differ.
transition 2006, we estimated that 8% of optiomtgavill be forfeited over the life of each grahhe intrinsic value of options exercised was
approximately $1,331, $4,609, $213 and $20 forsitaon 2006 and fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respegt

Cash received from option exercises uatleshare-based payment arrangements was $3,68 828, $704 and $305 for transition 2006
and fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Benefits realized from tax deductions associate¢l eption exercises totaled $506, $1,751,
$81 and $8 for transition 2006 and fiscal 2006,5280d 2004, respectively.

Restricted Stock Units

The fair value of restricted stock uretermined based on the number of shares grantethamuoted price of our common stock on
grant date. The fair value of restricted stocksuis recognized as expense over the service peraaf estimated forfeitures, using the
straight-line method under SFAS 123(R). We esenfatfeitures, based on historical trends, wheogazing compensation expense
associated with its restricted stock, and it wdjust its estimate of forfeitures when they areested to differ. For the eight months ended
December 31 2006, we estimate that 8% of restrigtieck grants will be forfeited over the life ofchagrant.
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We granted 517,750, 611,000, 133,9007&&J416 of restricted stock units in transition @0filscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively,
with an aggregate grant-date fair value of apprexéty, $8,538 $7,869 $1,727 and $7,636. Duringsitanm 2006 and fiscal 2006, 2005 and
2004, we recognized $4,451, $4,694, $4,084 and7$3réspectively, of compensation expense assdorth restricted stock units, which w
classified in selling, general and administratixpense.

The following table summarizes the atyiaf restricted stock units:

Weighted Average

Restricted Stock Units Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Unvested at May 1, 20(C 727,74; $ 12.8¢
Granted 517,75( $ 16.4¢
Vested (179,68) $ 13.2(
Forfeited/Expirec (23,92) $ 13.5¢
Dividends 45251 $ 16.47
Unvested at December 31, 2C 1,087,131 $ 14.6(

The grant date fair value of restricteatk units vested was $2,372, $4,475 and $6,458dasition 2006 and fiscal 2006, and 2005,
respectively. No restricted stock vested durisgdl 2004. Tax benefits realized from tax dedustiassociated with RSU activity totaled $901,
$1,701 and $684 for transition 2006 and fiscal 2806 2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006 there was $8¢#8dtal unrecognized compensation cost relatathi@sted restricted stock units to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of apmabely 1.5 years. Based on the current restristedk units outstanding, $5,336 of
compensation expense will be recognized in 2007th@demaining $2,928 will be recognized from 2692011.

SFAS 123(R)’s requirement to apply amnegted forfeiture rate to unvested awards restuittezh increase in net earnings, and a
cumulative effect of accounting change, as we presly recorded forfeitures when they occurred. tFamsition 2006, the cumulative effect of
accounting change totaled $215 ($140 net of rel@eeffect) and was recorded in selling, genemdl @ministrative expense because its
impact on net income and net income per share wiasignificant.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We provide a stock purchase plan foraaployees. Under the plan, any regular full-tirrpyee may contribute up to 10% of their
base compensation (subject to certain income [jrtotshe semi-annual purchase of shares of our aamstock. The purchase price is 85% of
the fair market value at certain plan-defined daB#sAS 123(R) defines this plan as compensatoy aaoordingly, a charge is recorded for the
difference between the fair market value and tsealinted price. In July 2006, a purchase occanedresulted in a $49 charge. 83
employees were participants in the stock purchiseand these employees purchased approximatel$4 3hares of our common stock at a
price of $12.77 per share. We recorded an additiomarge of $39 in transition 2006 related togixemonth offering period ending in January
2007.

15. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribufitan covering substantially all employees. Undés gihan, participants are allowed to make
contributions based on a percentage of their gsasubject to a statutorily prescribed annuatlivie make matching contributions of 50
percent of each participant’s contributions, ug6 of eligible compensation (maximum 3% matchingtdbution). We may also make
additional discretionary contributions to the 4QJgkan. Our expense for matching contributions additional discretionary contributions to
the 401(k) plan was $567, $835, $762 and $1,2lihgdransition 2006, fiscal 2006, 2005 and 20@4pectively.
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16. Segment Information

During fiscal 2006, we expanded the nundb@ur reportable segments to four in order betieeflect the manner in which managernr
analyzes our performance including our digital radalisinesses and the production of feature fildie. have also reclassified certain other
operations between the reportable segments. it pear segment information has been adjustedfteat the current presentation. The
results of operations farhe Worldand for the XFL are not included in the segmenbriipg as they are classified separately as diguoed
operations in our consolidated financial statemééze Note 19). We do not allocate corporate owethe each of the segments and as a result
corporate overhead is a reconciling item in théetélelow. There are no intersegment revenues. attieities of each segment are summarized
in Note 1.

Revenues derived from sales outside affNamerica were approximately $60,416 $97,686, %84 and $63,453 for transition 2006,
fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The table presents information abouffithencial results of each segment for transitioB&discal 2006, 2005 and 2004 and assets as of
December 31, 2006, April 30, 2006 and April 30, 200nallocated assets consist primarily of casbrtsterm investments and real property
and other investments.

T 2006 2006 2005 2004
Net revenues
Live and Televised Entertainme $ 182,99¢ $ 290,78 $ 299,50 $ 308,77¢
Consumer Produc 59,18: 86,41( 53,86¢ 54,71(
Digital Media 20,75 22,857 13,06¢ 11,42
WWE Films — — — —
Total net revenue $ 26293 $ 400,05: $ 366,43 $ 374,90¢

Depreciation and amortizatio

Live and Televised Entertainme $ 2,16 $ 3,561 $ 3,908 $ 441
Consumer Produc 85¢ 2,02¢ 2,07¢ 1,84:
Digital Media 177 1,471 1,45(C 2,72¢
Corporate 2,351 3,417 4,44( 3,37¢
Total depreciation and amortizati $ 5551 $ 10,47 $ 11,87 $ 12,36

Operating income

Live and Televised Entertainme $ 57,00 $ 93,98 $ 100,61 $ 106,49:
Consumer Produc 26,85¢ 46,417 26,79¢ 34,31¢
Digital Media 3,79¢ 2,93: 1,29( (7,897)
WWE Films (1,110 (1,289 (1,008) (1,337
Corporate (47,299 (71,510) (77,400) (58,00))
Total operating incom $ 3924: $ 7054C $ 50,29¢ $ 73,58(

December 31, As of:
2006 April 30, 2006 April 30, 2005
Assets:

Live and Televised Entertainme $ 77,08 $ 88,89¢ $ 88,47:
Consumer Produc 14,98: 16,85: 10,38:
Digital Media 6,12¢ 3,38( 3,01(
WWE Films 56,29¢ 39,01( 29,537
Unallocated (1 298,79 331,24¢ 310,00:
Total asset $ 453,28" $ 479,39( $ 441,40

(1) Includes assets of discontinued operation$160$$457, and $544 as of December 31, 2006, ApriR006 and April 30, 200



respectively
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17. Financial Instruments and Off-Balance Sheet Rk

Concentration of Credit Risk Financial instruments which potentially subjestto concentrations of credit risk are principéhnk
deposits, short-term investments and accountsvaglei. Cash and cash equivalents are depositechigithcredit quality financial institutions.
Short-term investments primarily consist of AAAAA rated instruments or mutual funds holding simitestruments. Except for receivables
from cable companies related to pay-per-view evantsour home video distributor, concentrationsreflit risk with respect to trade
receivables are limited due to the large numbeusfomers. A significant portion of trade receieabior pay-per-view events is received from
our pay-per-view administrator, who collects anehits payments to us from individual cable systerarafors. We perform ongoing
evaluations of our customers’ financial conditiorclud ing our pay-per-view administrator, and wenitor our exposure for credit losses and
maintain allowances for anticipated losses.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalent&iey market accounts, accounts receivable and
accounts payable approximate fair value becausigeashort-term nature of such instruments. Ourtdleom investments are carried at quoted
market values. Our debt consists of the mortgelged to our corporate headquarters, which hasanal interest rate of 7.6%. The fair vi
of this debt is not significantly different fronsitarrying amount.

18. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

1StQuarter 2"d Quarter 3'd Quarter * 4™ Quarter
T 2006
Net revenue $ 93,267 $ 96,23t $ 73,43¢ NA
Cost of revenue $ 53,26¢ $ 57,88. $  45,94¢ NA
Income from continuing operatiol $ 11,30: $ 10,39¢ $ 9,91¢ NA
Income from discontinued operatic — — — NA
Net income $ 11,30 $ 10,39¢ $ 9,91¢ NA
Earnings per common share: be
Continuing operation $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1 NA
Discontinued operatior $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 0.0cC NA
Net income $ 0.1€ $ 0.1t % 0.1¢ NA
Earnings per common share: dilu NA
Continuing operation $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1z NA
Discontinued operatior $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 0.0cC NA
Net income $ 0.1€ $ 0.1t % 0.1z NA
2006
Net revenue $ 93,81: % 88,93 $ 103,04: $ 114,26
Cost of revenue $ 52,50 $ 47,308 $ 56,18t $ 71,17¢
Income from continuing operatiol $ 11,17¢  $ 11,67¢ $ 13,59: $ 10,56
Income from discontinued operatic $ 2 % 26 $ 6 $ 1
Net income $ 11,18 $ 11,70: $ 13,59¢ $ 10,56¢
Earnings per common share: be
Continuing operation $ 0.1¢ $ 017 $ 02C $ 0.1t
Discontinued operatior $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.0C
Net income $ 0.1€ $ 017 $ 020 $ 0.1t
Earnings per common share: dilu
Continuing operation $ 0.1¢ $ 017 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1f
Discontinued operatior $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 0.0c¢
Net income $ 0.1¢ $ 017 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1t
2005
Net revenue $ 81,55( $ 83,857 $ 82,71¢ $ 118,30
Cost of revenue $ 48,41¢ $ 52,49: $ 4442¢ $ 67,95¢
Income from continuing operatiol $ 7,75¢ % 3,008 % 10,98¢ $ 16,02¢
(Loss) income from discontinued operatit $ (111 $ 1,44 $ (69 $ 104
Net income $ 7,64¢ $ 444¢ 3 10,91¢ $ 16,13
Earnings per common share: basic and dili
Continuing operation $ 011 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2:
Discontinued operatior $ 0.0C $ 0.0z $ 0.0C $ 0.0cC
Net income $ 011 $ 0.0¢6 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2¢




* The third quarter in T 2006 consists of only twomonths.
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19. Discontinued Operations
The World:

In fiscal 2004, we adjusted our shutdeeserves and recorded additional shutdown cos$2,6/1, or $1,671 after tax, representing the
expected absence of projected sub-rental paymentkd first nine months of fiscal 2005, which regented our revised estimate of the
expected time necessary to assign or sub-let thaining lease forhe World.

During fiscal 2005, we reached an agre#rieeassign the remaining term of the lease tord party and, accordingly, reduced the
accrual for estimated shutdown costs to the am@antired under this assignment. The assignmeievesl us of all further obligations related
to this property.

The results afhe Worldbusiness, which have been classified as discorttinperations in the consolidated financial states)eare
summarized as follows:

T 2006 2006 2005 2004

Income (loss) on shutdown @he World, net of taxes (benefit) of $0, $6, $7
and $(900) for T2006, and fiscal 2006, 2005 and42@€spectivel $ —  $ 11 $ 1,36¢ $ (1,679)

Assets and liabilities of discontinued operatioh3toe Worldconsisted of the following:

As of:

December 31, 2006 April 30, 2006 April 30, 2005

Assets:

Cash $ 60 $ 60 $ 18C
Total asset $ 6C $ 6C $ 18C
Liabilities:

Accrued expense $ 56 $ 56 $ 74
Total liabilities $ 56 $ 56 $ 74
XFL:

In early May 2001, we formalized our d&an to discontinue operations of the XFL and, adiomgly, reported XFL operating results and
estimated shutdown costs as discontinued operatiahe consolidated financial statements.

Income on the shutdown of the XFL in sition 2006 was $0, fiscal 2006 was $24, net oésaof $17, and $290, net of taxes of $178, in
fiscal 2004. Assets and liabilities of discontidugperations of the XFL consisted of the following:

As of:

December 31, 2006 April 30, 2006 April 30, 2005

Assets:

Cash $ 40¢ $ 397 % 364
Liabilities:

Accrued expense $ 17 % 17 % —
Minority interest 22¢ 221 18C

Total liabilities $ 24 $ 23t $ 18C
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SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(dollars in thousands)

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expenses Deductions (1) Period
For the Period Ended December 31, 20C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 3,740 % (1,579 $ 82 $ 2,08¢
Inventory obsolescence rese 3,53¢ 1,42¢ (73 4,891
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand ret 4,512 14,95« (15,390 4,07¢
Home video allowance for retur 3,817 14,25 (9,55¢) 8,51(
Advertising underdeliver 36E — (36%) —
For the Year Ended April 30, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 3287 $ 494 % 41 $ 3,74(
Inventory obsolescence rese 2,06z 1,89/ (421) 3,53¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand ret 4,60z 20,55¢ (20,464 4,512
Home video allowance for retur 2,92( 10,19¢ (9,302 3,81
Advertising underdeliver 2,62¢ 1,59¢ (3,859 36&
For the Year Ended April 30, 2005
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 261z $ 67t $ — 3 3,28
Inventory obsolescence rese 1,12¢ 1,54¢ (613) 2,062
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand ret 4,517 24,50: (24,419 4,60z
Home video allowance for retur 2,58¢ 9,64¢ (9,317 2,92(
Advertising underdeliver 4,401 6,14~ (7,927 2,62¢
For the Year Ended April 30, 2004
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 528. $ (2,295 $ (377 $ 2,612
Inventory obsolescence rese 89z 1,27(C (1,03¢) 1,12¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand ret 5,12¢ 24,94 (25,559 4,517
Home video allowance for retur 1,49¢ 8,88¢ (7,796 2,58¢
Advertising underdeliver 6,921 3,17( (5,690 4,401

(1) Deductions are comprised primarily of dispes#lobsolete inventory, wr-offs of specific bad debts, returns and adverti make-
goods” for underdelivery. When we do not delives guaranteed rating, additional spots, commaefhrred to as ‘make-goods’ or at times, a
cash refund, is given to the custon
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Exhibit 10.18
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into on March 2, 2007 ,amng between World Wrestling
Entertainment, Inc. (“WWE"), with offices at 124h& Main Street, Stamford, Connecticut 06902 (“€&ff), and Frank G. Serpe, an individ
residing at 120 Sheffield Drive, Stratford, Conimaat 06614 (“Employee”), each individually referremlas a “party” and collectively referred
to as the “parties.”

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the promises, covenants gndeanents set forth herein and for other good ahaable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of whach hereby acknowledged, the parties, intendirmgetiegally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. DUTIES/ACCOUNTABILITIES : Until March 14, 2008 or such earlier date asshiscessor shall be appointed by WWE, the
Employee shall be Chief Financial Officer, with dillties, responsibilities and accountabilities asilé be normal and suitable for the Chief
Financial Officer of a New York Stock Exchangedidtcompany. Thereafter during the Term, as defiieolw, Employee shall be a Senior
Advisor performing those duties and accountabditis directed by WWE's Chief Executive Officer amdZhief Operating Officer (or his/her
designee) (“WWE Supervisor”) including, but not iied to the following (“Duties”):

. Negotiating and procuring agreements relating ¢difees;
. Working with the Finance Department regarding fitiahaccounting issue
. Performing any other function or activity which M&NVE Supervisor may decide is necessary or desir

Employee shall devote his full businésgetand attention to the performance of his Dudied shall protect and promote the interests of
WWE. Employee shall cooperate in any reasonablenerawhatsoever with WWE in connection with thefpenance of the Duties. Employ
acknowledges and agrees that there are inheretasishwithin the services set forth above that bellperformed as a part of the Duties.
Employee shall be provided an office (“Office”) aad executive assistant at the Company’s headgsdnte, after March 14, 2008, may also
work from your home to the extent consistent whta performance of your Duties.

2. TERM Unless terminated earlier as set forth herdia térm of this Agreement shall commence on the dateof and end
three (3) years thereafter (“Term”).

3. COMPENSATION : Effective February 12, 2007, Employee’s annuldryas Three Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand US
Dollars ($325,000.00), less deductions and taxgsired by law, payable in accordance with the WWggular payroll practices, but no less
frequently than monthly. In addition, the Compdmag granted you 15,000 restricted stock units“@nemotion Shares”) which shall vest in
three equal annual installments with the first singfiallment vesting on January 23, 2008. Emplafes be entitled to participate in the
Company’s Management Incentive Plan in resped) ¢fi¢ 8-month period ended December 31, 200eh@asame level of participation as you
were at on December 31, 2006); and (ii) calend@i7Z@at a level equivalent to Executive Vice Presijién each case if bonuses are paid to
other executives under such plan. Thereaftersaof participation shall be at the sole discretibthe Company’s management and
Compensation Committe




4, EXPENSESWWE shall reimburse Employee for any reasonabtereecessary ordinary business expenses incurtée in
performance of his Duties hereunder, provided éingtsuch reimbursement hereunder (i) shall be sutgaV\WE'’s policies regarding such
reimbursement, now or hereafter adopted by WWIgskiall be allowed only upon receipt of adequafgpsuing documentation therefore and
(iii) shall not include normal commuting expensesween home and Office. All such expenses shakimebursed within thirty (30) calendar
days following submission to and approval by WWEanfinvoice and supporting documentation, no maguently than on a monthly basis.

5. BENEFITS Employee shall be eligible during the TermhigtAgreement for those benefits generally ava@ablsimilarly
situated employees of WWE, including, without liatibn, participation in WWE'’s medical plans for Eloyee and his spouse, as well as in
WWE'’s 401(k) Plan. Employee shall be eligible totripate in grants of equity-based compensatid?0i07 and shall not participate
thereafter, in either case unless decided otheftwighe Compensation Committee. Upon the expinadifcthe Term of this Agreement,
Employee shall have the right to elect continuedecage of medical and dental insurance throughECROA.

6. TERMINATION:

(@) WWE shall hatie right to terminate Employee’s employment dnd Agreement immediately for “Cause.” For
purposes hereof, “Cause” shall mean if the Emplpgieengages in fraud, deceit, misappropriationbezzlement, theft, unethical conduct, or
other act of material misconduct against WWE or ainys affiliates; (ii) willfully and knowingly vblates in any material fashion any rules or
regulations of any governmental or regulatory bamhiii) is convicted, pleads or enters a pleaolo contendere to a felony. If WWE
terminates the Employee for Cause, the Employeklshpaid any unpaid compensation as set forParagraph 3 above only through the «
of termination. WWE shall have no further obligatioereunder, financial or otherwise, from the ddteermination and WWE shall have all
other rights and remedies available under this Agrent at law or in equity.

(b) In the eventloe Employee’s resignation from employment ofifian as a result of Disability (as defined belathg,
Employee shall be paid his unpaid compensatior&fogh in Section 3 above through the date afyretion and will not be entitled to
severance, accelerated vesting of Equity, as difietow, or other benefits except as provided enlést sentence of Section 5. WWE shall
have no further obligation hereunder, financiabtirerwise, from the date of resignation and WWAHIdtzve all other rights and remedies
available under this Agreement, at law and/or initygq For purposes hereof, “Disability” shall mei&as a result of Employee’s incapacity due
to physical or mental illness (as determined indgfaith by a physician acceptable to the WWE), Eoyieé shall have been absent from full-
time performance of his Duties with the WWE for ety (90) consecutive days during any twelve (12hthgeriod.



(© If, befotgetend of the Term, Employee dies or becomes Giadadnl if WWE terminates Employee’s employment
other than for Cause, then (i) the Employee’s Isasary for the balance of the Term of the Agreemeéhtbe paid; and (ii) the Promotion
Shares and all other options or restricted stodis ymeviously granted to the Employee (collectyyéEquity”) shall immediately vest.

(d) If Employseémployment has not otherwise ended, all Equilyimvimediately vest at the end of the Term.

7. COVENANTS OF THE EMPLOYEE. In order to induce the WWE to enter into thisségment, the Employee hereby agrees
as follows:

€) Confidentigli The Employee acknowledges that by reason afdfégionship with and service to the WWE, the
Employee has had and will have access to configlenformation relating to operations and technglagd know-how which have been
developed by the WWE and its affiliates, includimgthout limitation, film-related ideas, story baarand the like, information and knowledge
pertaining to wrestling productions and performangaiblic relations and marketing, products andé thesign and manufacture, methods of
operation, sales and profit data, customer andligugists and relationships between the WWE aadffiliates and its customers, suppliers
others who have business dealings with it, othferination not readily available to the public, gidns for future developments relating
thereto. In recognition of the foregoing, durihg fTerm and at all times thereafter, the Employ#lemaintain the confidentiality of all such
information and other matters of the WWE and if8iafes known to the Employee which are otherwisé in the public domain and will not
disclose any such information to any person outgideorganization of the WWE, wherever located ept@s required by law or with the W\
Board of Directors’ prior written authorization andnsent.

(b) Record&ll papers, books and records of every kind description relating to the business and affairhefWWE,
or any its affiliates, whether or not prepared oy Employee, other than personal notes prepared athe direction of the Employee, shall be
the sole and exclusive property of the WWE, andBhmployee shall surrender them to the WWE at ang tipon request by WWE.

(© Nabompetition. The Employee hereby agrees with the WWE thanduhe Term on a worldwide basis and for a
period of one year following the Term in the Unitthtes, (i) he shall not perform services formbehalf of any professional wrestling
organization or entity not affiliated with WWE; Xie shall not actively solicit any employee of W&VE or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates
to leave the employment thereof; and (iii) he shatlinduce or attempt to induce any customer, sempficensee or other individual,
corporation or other business organization havibgsiness relation with the WWE or its subsidiadesffiliates to cease doing business with
the WWE or its subsidiaries or in any way interfesith the relationship between any such customgpler, licensee or other person and the
WWE or its subsidiaries or affiliates.

(d) Work&mployee hereby acknowledges that all dutiesoperéd hereunder were specifically ordered or
commissioned by the WWE (“Work”); that the Work stitutes and shall constitute a work-made-for-agalefined in the United States
Copyright Act of 1976; that WWE is and shall be ¢hehor of said wol-madefor-hire and the owner of all rights



and to the Work throughout the universe, in pelipetnd in all languages, for all now known or tedter existing uses, media and forms,
including, without limitation, the copyrights thémeand thereto throughout the universe for théahierm and any and all extensions and
renewals thereof; and that the WWE shall haveitite to make such changes therein and such usesoftes it may deem necessary or
desirable. “Works” shall include, but not be lintiteo all material and information created by thegdoyee in the course of or as a result of the
Employee’s employment by the WWE which is fixedaitangible medium of expression, including, butlimited to, notes, drawings,
memoranda, correspondence, documents, recorddoudi flow charts, computer programs and sourdeoiect codes, regardless of the
medium in which they are fixed. To the extent tit Work is not recognized as a work-made-for;tmployee hereby assigns, transfers and
conveys to the WWE, without reservation, all of Boyee’s right, title and interest throughout the univarsperpetuity in the Work, includin
without limitation, all rights of copyright and cppght renewal in said Work or any part thereoheTEmployee will take whatever steps an
whatever acts the WWE request, including, but imoitéd to, placement of the WWE'’s proper copyrigbtice on such Works to secure or aid
in securing copyright protection and will assis INWE or its nominees in filing applications to istgr claims of copyright in such works.

The Employee will not reproduce, distribute, digpteaublicly, or perform publicly, alone or in combition with any data processing or network
system, any Works of the WWE without the writtemrpission from the WWE.

(e) Enforcemernithe Employee agrees and warrants that the cat®oantained herein are reasonable, that valid
consideration has been and will be received thegeid that the agreements set forth herein areethét of arms-length negotiations between
the parties hereto. The Employee recognizes tiegpitovisions of this Paragraph 7 are vitally intaot to the continuing welfare of the WWE,
and its affiliates, and that money damages constiuotally inadequate remedy for any violatioeréof. Accordingly, in the event of any st
violation by the Employee, the WWE, and its aftiig, in addition to any other remedies they mayehakall have the right to institute and
maintain a proceeding to compel specific perforneathereof or to issue an injunction restraining actyon by the Employee in violation of
this Paragraph 7.

8. ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement contemplates the personal ses\o€E&mployee and is not assignable by Employe&VBN
may assign this Agreement in whole or in part, waithlimitation or restriction.

9. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION:

(@) Governingi:a This Agreement shall be governed by, and condtiuaccordance with, the laws of the State of
Connecticut applicable to contracts entered intbtarbe fully performed therein

(b) Jurisdictiorithe parties hereto agree to submit solely tquhsdiction of the United States District Courtéded in
Bridgeport, Connecticut and the Judicial Districtu@ of Stamford located in Stamford, Connecticlihe parties agree that service of process
by mail shall be effective service of same and serliice shall have the same effect as persondteewith the State of Connecticut and result
in personal jurisdiction over the parties in theufo in the State of Connecticut. The provisionstamed in this Paragraph shall survive the
termination and/or expiration of this Agreeme



10. NOTICES: Any notices are to be sent by certified mailure receipt requested, federal express, or fiestscpostal service
and addressed set forth above, and if to WWE tattemtion of Edward L. Kaufman, Esq., Executivied/President and General Counsel.

11. SEVERABILITY : In the event that any provision or portion dstAgreement shall be declared invalid or unenfabbde for
any reason by a court of competent jurisdictiohsprovision or portion shall be considered segaaatd apart from the remainder of this
Agreement, which shall remain in full force andeett

12. NAME AND LIKENESS: WWE and its licensees and/or assignees shall thevexclusive and perpetual right, but not the
obligation, to use and license the use of Emplayaame, photograph, likeness and approved biogralpdata (“Name and Likeness”) for the
purpose of advertising, marketing, promoting, ptibing and exploiting any matter related to theiBsiperformed hereunder with Employee’s
permission, which shall not be unreasonably wittihel

13. INDEMNITY :

€) Employeelshald WWE, its parent, subsidiary and affiliatengpanies and the directors, officers, employees,
licensees, successors, assigns and agents ofrégwiiog, harmless from and against all claimsilitas, damages, costs and attorneys’ fees
arising from any grossly negligent or intentionetissby Employee.

(b) WWE shalllthidmployee harmless from and against all claimasilities, damages, costs and attorneys’ feesnaris
solely from the performance of Employee’s Dutiethim the course and scope of Employee’s employhergunder.

14. REMEDIES: The waiver by either party of any breach hesdwll not be deemed a waiver of any prior or subsetgbreach
hereof. All remedies of either party shall be cilative and the pursuit of one remedy shall not ended a waiver of any other remedy.

15. INTEGRATION: This Agreement contains the complete understanekisting between the parties on the subjectsreav
and supersedes any previous written or verbal stetgdings with respect thereto. This Agreement nybe amended except by a writing
signed by authorized representatives of Employele WWE.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreenseot the date first above written.

FRANK G. SERPE
(“Employe”)

/sl Frank G. Serp

Frank G. Serp

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
(“WWE”)

/s/ Michael Silecl

Michael Sileck
Chief Operating Office



Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

(All subsidiaries are wholly-owned, directly or ingettly)
TSI Realty Company (a Delaware corporation)
World Wrestling Entertainment Canada, Inc. (a Céaradorporation)
Stephanie Music Publishing, Inc. (a Connecticupooation)
The World Entertainment, LLC (a Delaware limiteahlility company)*
World Wrestling Entertainment (International) Lieit (a UK corporation)
Event Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WWE Films Development, Inc. (a Dretae corporation)
- Marine Productions (a Californiaporation)
- Marine Productions Australia Pty l(an Australia corporation)
- Eye Scream Productions (a Califaorporation)
- Eye Scream Man Productions AusirBliy Ltd (an Australia corporation)
- Condemned Productions, Inc. (afGalia corporation)
- Condemned Productions AustralialRty(an Australia corporation)
WWE Libraries, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)

WCW, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)

*Not in operation



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statements Nos. 333-92041 and 333-9287eoom S-8 and No. 333-72536 on
Form S-3 of our reports dated February 28, 200&ting to the financial statements and financiatesnent schedule of World Wrestling
Entertainment, Inc., and managemsmgport on the effectiveness of internal contk@rdinancial reporting appearing in this TransitiRepor
on Form 10-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Ifiar the eight month period ended December 31, 2006

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut

February 28, 2007



Exhibit 31.1

Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 1:-14 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Vincent K. McMahon, certify tha

1.
2.

I have reviewed this transition report on Forn-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controtsmocedures, or caused such disclosure contrdipatedures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepai

b) Designed such internal control direancial reporting, or caused such internal cdrdker financial reporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of #gigtrant’s disclosure controls and procedurespresented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any chaimgthe registrant’s internal control over finanadiaporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hatenelly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; ar

The registrant’s other certifying officers and Mhalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioriesnal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and maal weaknesses in the design or operation ofriatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie's ability to record, process, summarize and reffiehcial information; ani

b) Any fraud, whether or not materthhit involves management or other employees whe haignificant role in the registrasit’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: March 2, 200 By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahor

Vincent K. McMahor
Chairman of the Boar
(co-principal executive officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 1:-14 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Linda E. McMahon, certify tha

1.
2.

I have reviewed this transition report on Forn-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controtsmocedures, or caused such disclosure contrdipatedures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepai

b) Designed such internal control direancial reporting, or caused such internal cdrdker financial reporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of #gigtrant’s disclosure controls and procedurespresented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any chaimgthe registrant’s internal control over finanadiaporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hatenelly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; ar

The registrant’s other certifying officers and Mhalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioriesnal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and maal weaknesses in the design or operation ofriatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie's ability to record, process, summarize and reffiehcial information; ani

b) Any fraud, whether or not materthhit involves management or other employees whe haignificant role in the registraat’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: March 2, 200 By: /s/ Linda E. McMahot

Linda E. McMahor
Chief Executive Office
(co-principal executive officer



Exhibit 31.3

Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 1:-14 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Frank G. Serpe, certify the

1.

2.

| have reviewed this transition report on Forn-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omdt&te a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controts@ocedures, or caused such disclosure contrdlpaotedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepai

b) Designed such internal control direancial reporting, or caused such internal cdrax@r financial reporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of #gistrant’s disclosure controls and procedurespaiesented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any chaimgthe registrant’s internal control over finanaiaporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hatenaly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; ar

The registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosealsddd on our most recent evaluation of internalroboter financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and maal weaknesses in the design or operation ofriatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize and refiehcial information; ani

b) Any fraud, whether or not materthhit involves management or other employees whe haignificant role in the registraat’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: March 2, 200 By: /s/ Frank G. Serp

Frank G. Serp
Chief Financial Officel
(principal financial officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chairman, CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tadBe2d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the transition report on FormKL.@f World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Cpamy”) for the period ended December
31, 2006 as filed with the Securities and Excha@gmmission on the date hereof (the “Report”), €imcK. McMahon as Chairman of the
Board and co-principal executive officer of the Guany, Linda E. McMahon as Chief Executive Officadao-principal executive officer of
the Company, and Frank G. Serpe as Chief Fina@dfaler and principal financial officer, each hleyecertifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theafas-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of dniser knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 as amended; a

(2)  The information contained in the report fairly pets, in all material aspects, the financial caodiaind results of operations of the
Company.

By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahor

Vincent K. McMahor
Chairman of the Boar
(co-principal executive officer

March 2, 2007

By: /s/ Linda E. McMahot

Linda E. McMahor
Chief Executive Office
(co-principal executive officer

March 2, 2007

By: /s/ Frank G. Serp

Frank G. Serp
Chief Financial Officel
(principal financial officer

March 2, 2007



